
 

 
 
 

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 
MONDAY, APRIL 8, 2024, AT 2:00 P.M.  

 
BOARD ROOM 

4594 SAN BERNARDINO STREET 
MONTCLAIR, CA  91763 

 
OUR MISSION 

Protecting and replenishing our regional groundwater supply since 1949. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Mark Ligtenberg, President  
Kati Parker, Vice President  

Gil Aldaco, Treasurer  
Teri Layton, Director 

Amanda Coker, Director 
Hanif Gulmahamad, Director 
Ryan Sonnenberg, Director 

GENERAL MANAGER  LEGAL COUNSEL 

Elizabeth Willis  Lee McElhaney 
 

NOTICES 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: Those interested in participating during the Public Comment period or 
public testimony period for Public Hearings of the Board meetings, may do so in person the day 
of the meeting, or by contacting Brandon Yoshida, Board Clerk, via email at byoshida@cbwcd.org 
at least two hours prior to the start of the meeting. Speakers will be required to sign in and each 
person’s name will be called in the order received.  
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The Chino Basin Water Conservation District complies with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and amendments thereto.  If you require special assistance to 
participate in this meeting or if you desire a copy of the Agenda in an alternate format, please 
contact the District office at (909) 626-2711 at least 72 hours prior to the advertised starting time 
of the meeting. 
 
AGENDA MATERALS: The agenda and/or agenda packet are available for public inspection at 
District’s website at:  https://cbwcd.org/agendas/.  

mailto:byoshida@cbwcd.org
https://cbwcd.org/agendas/


April 8, 2024:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 5 
 

INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

 In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), a two-thirds vote (or 
unanimous vote if less than two-thirds are present), is required to add an item for action, 
provided that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 
attention of the agency after the agenda was posted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 
This is the time and place for the general public to address the Board of Directors.  Due to Brown 
Act requirements, action will not be taken on any issues not on the Agenda; however, the Board 
of Directors may refer comments and concerns to staff or request the item be placed on a future 
agenda. In accordance with District Resolution No. 2020-05: Decorum During Public Meetings, 
each speaker shall be allotted five (5) minutes of time to address the Board. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
At this time, members of the public may present testimony as to why an item should be removed 
from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion.  Unless a member of the public or a Director 
request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, all items will be acted upon as a 
whole and approved in a single motion and vote.  Items removed from the Consent Calendar will 
be acted upon separately. 
 
1. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES: REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 11, 2024; AND 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING OF MARCH 27, 2024 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve Meeting Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of March 11, 2024; and 
Personnel Committee Meeting of March 27, 2024. 

 
2. APPROVE 1234 DIRECTOR TRAVEL, TRAINING, AND MEETING REPORT 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve the Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report, reflecting business-
related expenses incurred by the District. 

 
3. APPROVE 1234 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT REPORT 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors:  

1. Approve the Compensation and Reimbursement Report. 
 



April 8, 2024:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 5 
 

4. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR FEBRUARY 2024  
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve the financial reports for February 2024. 
 
5. INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01, AN ORDINANCE OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
ADOPTING A POLICY PROHIBITING CAMPING ON DISTRICT OWNED PROPERTIES 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Introduce and conduct first reading, by title only, Ordinance No. 2024-01, an 
Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the Chino Basin Water Conservation 
District, adopting a policy prohibiting camping on District owned properties. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
6. APPROVE UPDATED DISTRICT POLICY NO. 48 – CELL PHONE USAGE AND STIPEND 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
1. Review, discuss, and approve District Policy No. 48 – Cell Phone Usage and 

Stipend, effective April 8, 2024; and, 
2. Direct staff to update the District’s Policy and Procedures Manual. 

 
7. APPROVE UPDATED DISTRICT POLICY NOS. 30, 30-2 – 30-6, 38, AND 39 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Review, discuss, and approve District Policy Nos. 30, 30-2 – 30-6, 38, and 39, 
effective April 8, 2024; and, 

2. Direct staff to update the District’s Policy and Procedures Manual. 
 
8. APPROVE THE RETROACTIVE PAY TO ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II POSITION FOR 

DUTIES PERFORMED OUTSIDE OF CLASSIFICATION 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Review, discuss, and approve the retroactive pay “Option A” for the 
Administrative Assistant II position for duties performed outside of classification, 
effective April 8, 2024, as recommended by the Personnel Committee. 

 
9. ELECTION MARKETING PLAN FOR THE NOVEMBER 2024 GENERAL ELECTION  

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Review, discuss, and provide feedback on the election marketing plan for the 
November 2024 General Election. 

 



April 8, 2024:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 5 
 

10. AWARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 2024-02 TO 19SIX ARCHITECTS IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $124,900, FOR THE DESIGN AND ENGINEERING ENHACEMENTS TO THE 
DISTRICT OUTDOOR AMPHITHEATER 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Review, discuss, and approve the awarding of a professional services agreement 
to 19Six Architects in the amount of $124,900, for the design and engineering 
enhancements to the District Outdoor Amphitheater. 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 
11. STATE WATER ALLOCATION INFORMATIONAL UPDATES 

 
DIRECTOR ORAL REPORTS: This is the time and place for the Board of Directors to report on any 
items of interest.  Upon request by an individual Director, the Board may choose to take action 
on any of the subject matters listed below. 
 
• President Ligtenberg 
 
• Vice President Parker 
 
• Treasurer Aldaco  
 
• Director Layton  
 
• Director Coker 
 
• Director Gulmahamad  
 
• Director Sonnenberg 
 
STAFF ORAL REPORTS 
 
• General Manager/Secretary Report 
 
• Legal Counsel Report 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Legal Counsel shall provide a briefing on the item listed for Closed Session as follows: 
 
12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN, INC., et al. vs. CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT; and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive 



April 8, 2024:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 5 of 5 
 

San Bernardino Superior Court Case No.: CIVDS 1933655 
 

13.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE REVIEW  
 Government Code Section 54957 
 Title: General Manager 

 
14. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – PENDING LITIGATION 
 Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
 Significant Exposure to Litigation 
 Number of Cases: 1 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The Board of Directors will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting of the Chino Basin Water 
Conservation District on Monday, May 13, 2024, at 2:00 p.m.  
 
I, Brandon Yoshida, Board Clerk of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District, do hereby certify 
that a copy of this agenda has been posted at the District Headquarters, located at 4594 San 
Bernardino Street, Montclair, CA 91763 and on the District’s website by 2:00 p.m. on April 5, 
2024.  
 
 
_____________________________________________   
Brandon Yoshida, Board Clerk 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*** PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK *** 



ITEM NO. 1 
 

 

 

 

 

APPROVE MEETING MINUTES: REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF MARCH 11, 2024, 
AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING OF MARCH 27, 2024. 



 

 
 
 

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
MONDAY, MARCH 11, 2024, AT 2:00 P.M.  

 
BOARD ROOM 

4594 SAN BERNARDINO STREET 
MONTCLAIR, CA  91763 

 
OUR MISSION 

Protecting and replenishing our regional groundwater supply since 1949. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Mark Ligtenberg, President  
Kati Parker, Vice President  

Gil Aldaco, Treasurer  
Teri Layton, Director 

Amanda Coker, Director 
Hanif Gulmahamad, Director 
Ryan Sonnenberg, Director 

GENERAL MANAGER  LEGAL COUNSEL 

Elizabeth Willis  Lee McElhaney 
 

INVOCATION 
President Ligtenberg led the invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE 
President Ligtenberg called the meeting to order at 2:07 p.m. and led the flag salute. 
 
ROLL CALL 
President Mark Ligtenberg, Vice President Kati Parker, Treasurer Gilbert Aldaco, Directors Teri 
Layton, Amanda Coker, Hanif Gulmahamad, and Ryan Sonnenberg were present. 
 
General Manager Elizabeth Willis, Administrative Services Manager Alicia Fernandez, Facilities & 
Operations Manager Dave Schroeder, Community Programs Manager Maia Dean, Board Clerk 
Brandon Yoshida, and Legal Counsel Lee McElhaney were present. 
 
ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

 General Manager Willis confirmed there were no additions or changes to the agenda.

ATTACHMENT 1



March 11, 2024:  Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7 
 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 
President Ligtenberg opened the Public Comment Period. Kassandra Lopez and Judith Taylor 
provided public comments. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Motion by Vice President Parker, second by Treasurer Aldaco, carried 7-0, to approve the consent 
calendar with the removal of Item 2 for separate consideration. 
 
1. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES: EDUCATION COMMITTEE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 9, 

2024, REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF FEBRUARY 12, 2024, AND FINANCE 
COMMITTEE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2024 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve Meeting Minutes: Education Committee Meeting of February 9, 2024, 
Regular Board of Directors Meeting of February 12, 2024, and Finance Committee 
Meeting of February 13, 2024. 

 
2. APPROVE 1234 DIRECTOR TRAVEL, TRAINING, AND MEETING REPORT 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve the Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report, reflecting business-
related expenses incurred by the District. 

 
Motion by Vice President Parker, second by Treasurer Aldaco, carried 7-0, to approve Item 2 to 
include Vice President Parker’s name on the February 8th, 2024, CBWCD Field Trip. 

 
3. APPROVE 1234 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT REPORT 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors:  

1. Approve the Compensation and Reimbursement Report. 
 

4. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR JANUARY 2024  
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve the financial reports for January 2024. 
 

5. APPROVE THE RESCHEDULING OF THE REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 11, 2024, TO MONDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2024 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve the rescheduling of the Regular Board of Directors Meeting of Monday, 
November 11, 2024, to Monday, November 18, 2024, due to November 11th being 
a Federal Holiday (Veterans Day). 

 



March 11, 2024: Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 7 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
6. APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO DISTRICT POLICY NO. 32 - DIRECTOR, GENERAL MANAGER, 

SALARIED, AND HOURLY EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
1. Amend the language within District Policy No. 32 – Director, General Manager, 

Salaried, and Hourly Employee Benefits effective April 1, 2024, as recommended 
by the Personnel and Finance Committees; and,  

2. Amend Policy No. 32 to allow Directors to be covered under the single ACWA JPIA 
Formula effective on or before June 1, 2024, as recommended by the Personnel 
and Finance Committees (60 days lead time required). 

 
General Manager Willis presented Item 6. She provided a summary of the report, stated the 
language and verbiage issues within the current policy, and addressed the proposed amendments 
that will provide clarity with regards to medical benefits. Ms. Willis discussed the changes to the 
medical benefit amount and the change to include Directors under the single ACWA JPIA Formula. 
She also stated that the staff report was approved by both the Personnel and Finance Committees. 
 
Director Sonnenberg questioned if open enrollment will be opened in April because of this 
amendment. General Manager Willis stated that employees will receive the benefit effective April 
1st, 2024, but that this amendment will not affect the open enrollment period, which is scheduled 
in November 2024. 
 
Vice President Parker questioned the feasibility behind offering a reimbursement option for 
employees who are on the single plan and do not utilize the full benefit amount. General Manager 
Willis stated that a change of that nature would require the District to make the medical benefits 
offered to employees count towards taxable income. 

 
Motion by Director Sonnenberg, second by Treasurer Aldaco, carried 7-0, to amend the language 
within District Policy No. 32 – Director, General Manager, Salaried, and Hourly Employee Benefits 
effective April 1, 2024, and amend Policy No. 32 to allow Directors to be covered under the single 
ACWA JPIA Formula effective on or before June 1, 2024. 

 
7. REVIEW SALARY ANALYSIS AND APPROVE UPDATED ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT I, 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II AND PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST JOB 
DESCRIPTIONS 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Review and discuss the salary analysis and proposed labor grades; and, 
2. Review, discuss, and approve the updated job descriptions for Administrative 

Assistant I and Administrative Assistant II positions effective March 11, 2024, as 
recommended by the Personnel and Finance Committees; and,  



March 11, 2024: Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7 
 

3. Review, discuss, and approve the proposed Administrative Analyst position 
effective March 11, 2024, as recommended by the Personnel and Finance 
Committees; and, 

4. Review, discuss, and approve the suggested retroactive pay for the employee 
working out of class, as recommended by the Personnel and Finance Committees; 
and, 

5. Review, discuss, and approve a Request for Proposals to conduct a Classification 
and Compensation Study for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

 
General Manager Willis presented Item 7. She provided a summary of the report. Ms. Willis stated 
that retention for the Administrative Services Department can be challenging due to the 
transferability of their skills across different types of public agencies, including municipalities, 
county governments, and many different types of special districts. Ms. Willis also provided a 
summary of events that led to the recommendations to update the Administrative Assistant job 
descriptions, bring forward an Administrative Analyst position, and to conduct a classification and 
compensation study to be included in the next budget cycle. Ms. Willis stated that the staff report 
was approved by both the Personnel and Finance Committees. 
 
Director Layton stated that there is a need to conduct a full classification and compensation study 
for all positions, not just one position at a time.   
 
Director Coker agreed with Director Layton on the need for a comprehensive plan. Coker also 
requested a long-term staffing plan to be added to the scope of the classification and 
compensation study. She inquired on how the retroactive pay for recommendation number 4 of 
the staff report was calculated. 
 
General Manager Willis and Administrative Services Manager Fernandez provided additional 
clarification on the duties performed by the employee working out of their classification during 
the calendar years 2020 – 2022. General Manager Willis stated that the District’s certified public 
accounting firm, Eide Bailly LLP, provided an in-depth calculation based on every merit increase 
and cost of living adjustment that employee would have received when they were doing the work 
of both classifications. Ms. Willis confirmed that the employee was performing the work of two 
budgeted positions during 2020 – 2022, despite the COVID-19 closure pausing typical duties of 
the Administrative Assistant II position. 
 
Director Coker stated that the calculated methodology for the retroactive pay should be reviewed 
by the Personnel Committee to ensure the calculations are conducive to the amount being paid 
to the employee and for the work performed during the specific period of January 2022 to present. 
 
Motion by Vice President Parker, second by Director Sonnenberg, carried 7-0, to approve the 
updated job descriptions for Administrative Assistant I and Administrative Assistant II positions 
effective March 11, 2024, approve the proposed Administrative Analyst position effective March 
11, 2024, present the retroactive pay calculation methodology to the Personnel Committee for 
further review, and approve a Request for Proposals to conduct a Classification and Compensation 



March 11, 2024: Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 7 
 

Study for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, with the addition of a long term staffing plan to be included in 
the scope. 
 
8. APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO THE PROGRAM EDUCATOR I/II JOB DESCRIPTION AND 

APPROVE THE PROPOSED CHANGE TO THREE (3) FULL-TIME EDUCATORS 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Amend the job description for the Program Educator I/II position effective March 
11, 2024, as recommended by the Personnel and Finance Committees; and, 

2. Approve the adjustments from two (2) full-time and one (1) part-time Educator to 
three (3) full-time Educators effective March 11, 2024, as recommended by the 
Personnel and Finance Committees. 

 
General Manager Willis presented Item 8. Ms. Willis provided a summary of events that led to 
staff recommendation. She provided the duties and responsibilities of the Community Programs 
Department and the current need for a full-time position instead of a part-time position. 
Community Programs Manager Dean provided additional clarification on the position duties and 
responsibilities. 
 
Director Coker suggested for any future occurrence of this happening again that the District keep 
the full-time position budgeted and underfill whenever there is a staffing change needed. 
 
Motion by Director Sonnenberg, second by Director Layton, carried 7-0, to amend the job 
description for the Program Educator I/II position effective March 11, 2024, and approve the 
adjustments from two (2) full-time and one (1) part-time Educator to three (3) full-time Educators 
effective March 11, 2024. 
 
9. APPROVE MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS FOR FISACL YEAR 2023-2024 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
1. Review, discuss, and approve the mid-year budget adjustments for fiscal year 

2023-2024 as recommended by the Personnel and Finance Committees; and, 
2. Review, discuss, and approve the adjustments to the classification and 

compensation schedule for fiscal year 2023-2024 as recommended by the 
Personnel and Finance Committees. 

 
Director Sonnenberg left the Dias at 3:08 p.m. and returned at 3:09 p.m. 
Director Gulmahamad left the Dias at 3:10 p.m. and returned at 3:11 p.m. 
 
General Manager Willis presented Item 9. She provided a summary of the report. Ms. Willis 
reported that the District's performance has been positive, with projected revenues meeting or 
exceeding performance this year. She outlined the amended budget changes detailed in the staff 
report, highlighting the District's favorable financial position to implement these adjustments.  



March 11, 2024: Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 7 
 

Director Coker requested the District provide a line item under the revenues account for the 
reimbursement from the 4 party agreement on the next budget cycle.  
 
Treasurer Aldaco inquired on the target installation date of the Brooks Basin Fence. Facilities & 
Operations Manager Schroeder provided a summary of the project timeline, with the target 
completion date being May 6th, 2024. 
 
Motion by Director Coker, second by Director Sonnenberg, carried 7-0, to approve the mid-year 
budget adjustments for fiscal year 2023-2024 and approve the adjustments to the classification 
and compensation schedule for fiscal year 2023-2024. 
 
10. RATIFICATION OF EMERGENCY CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $16,680 WITH GRB 

ENGINEERING FOR MONTCLAIR BASIN NO. 2 EAST SLOPE REPAIRS 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
1. Review, discuss, and ratify the emergency contract in the amount of $16,680 with 

GRB Engineering for Montclair Basin No. 2 East Slope Repairs. 
 
Facilities & Operations Manager Schroeder presented Item 10. Schroeder provided an in-depth 
report of the events that led to the staff recommendation. Director Coker suggested an on-call 
contractor for emergency basin repairs. 
 
Motion by Director Layton, second by Director Gulmahamad, carried 7-0, to ratify the emergency 
contract in the amount of $16,680 with GRB Engineering for Montclair Basin No. 2 East Slope 
Repairs. 
 
DIRECTOR ORAL REPORTS:  
Vice President Parker, Treasurer Aldaco, and Directors Layton, Coker, Gulmahamad, and 
Sonnenberg gave brief reports.  
 
Vice President Parker requested that staff bring forth a discussion item on the next Regular Board 
of Directors Meeting regarding an election marketing plan in preparation for the 2024 Election 
period. Vice President Parker expressed that having more competitive elections will foster growth 
within the community, expanding outreach on the importance of the agency. Director 
Gulmahamad noted that the agency should not spend funds on endorsing specific candidates but 
instead on educating the public on the agency’s election, purpose, and water conservation efforts.  
 
Director Sonnenberg left the Dias at 3:43 p.m. and returned at 3:44 p.m. 
Director Gulmahamad left the Dias at 3:47 p.m. and returned at 3:49 p.m. 
 
STAFF ORAL REPORTS 
General Manager Willis provided a brief report regarding the recent lobby updates at the District 
office, noted the Open House that is being hosted on March 21, 2024 at 5:00 p.m., and highlighted 



March 11, 2024: Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 7 
 

employee Brandon Burgess on having an article regarding artificial turf, Polyfluoroalkyl 
substances (PFAS), and state regulations published in the Landscape Contractor Magazine.  
 
CLOSED SESSION 
President Ligtenberg recessed the Regular Board of Directors Meeting into Closed Session at 
3:50 p.m. 
 
11. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN, INC., et al. vs. CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT; and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive 
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No.: CIVDS 1933655 
 

12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) 
Significant Exposure to Litigation 
Number of Cases: 1 

 
13. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency Designated Representative: Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
Unrepresented Employees 

 
Director Layton excused herself from the remainder of the meeting at 4:30 p.m. 
Director Sonnenberg excused himself from the remainder of the meeting at 4:31 p.m. 
 
President Ligtenberg reconvened the Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 4:46 p.m. Legal 
Counsel stated no reportable action from Closed Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
President Ligtenberg adjourned the Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 4:46 p.m. to the next 
Regular Board of Directors Meeting of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District, scheduled for 
Monday, April 8, 2024, at 2:00 p.m.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 8TH DAY OF APRIL 2024.   
 
            

     __________________________________ 
Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Brandon Yoshida, Board Clerk 



 
 

 
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 27, 2024, AT 11:00 A.M.  
 

CONFERENCE ROOM 
4594 SAN BERNARDINO STREET 

MONTCLAIR, CA  91763 
 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Ryan Sonnenberg, Director  

Kati Parker, Director 
Gil Aldaco, Director 

GENERAL MANAGER  LEGAL COUNSEL 

Elizabeth Willis  Lee McElhaney 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Committee Chair Sonnenberg called the meeting to order at 11:01 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Committee Chair/Director Ryan Sonnenberg, Vice President Kati Parker, and Treasurer Gilbert 
Aldaco were present. 

General Manager Elizabeth Willis, Administrative Services Manager Alicia Fernandez, 
Conservation Programs Manager Scott Kleinrock, and Board Clerk Brandon Yoshida were 
present. 

ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 General Manager Willis confirmed there were no additions to the agenda; however, staff 

requested the Committee act on Item 2 before the rest of the items. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 
Committee Chair Sonnenberg opened the Public Comment Period. No comments were given. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. RETROACTIVE PAY TO ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II POSITION FOR DUTIES 

PERFORMED OUTSIDE OF CLASSIFICATION 
 

ATTACHMENT 2



 
March 27, 2024: Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5 
   
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Committee: 
1. Review, discuss, provide feedback, and recommend for Board of Director’s 

approval the retroactive pay options for the Administrative Assistant II position 
for duties performed outside of classification effective April 8, 2024. 

 
General Manager Willis presented Item 1. She provided a summary of the report, noted that this 
item was brought back to the Personnel Committee by the Board of Directors on March 11, 2024, 
and explained why the item was returned. Ms. Willis explained the gap in duties performed during 
the COVID-19 shut down and how the Board of Directors felt it be more feasible to review 
retroactive pay amounts from January 2022 to present, when the Administrative Assistant II 
resumed duties of both positions. 
 
Treasurer Aldaco recommended the Committee move forward with highlighting Option A as the 
preferred retroactive pay amount but to present both options to the Board of Directors. 
 
Motion by Committee Chair Sonnenberg, seconded by Treasurer Aldaco, carried 3-0, to 
recommend the Board of Directors approve the retroactive pay options for the Administrative 
Assistant II position for duties performed outside of classification, highlighting Option A as the 
preferred amount, to be effective on April 8, 2024. 
 
2. CONSERVATION SPECIALIST I/II JOB DESCRIPTIONS UPDATES 
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Committee: 
1. Review, discuss, provide feedback, and recommend for Board of Director’s 

approval the proposed updates and changes to the Conservation Specialist I/II job 
descriptions effective April 8, 2024. 

 
The Committee addressed Item 2 ahead of other agenda items. 
 
General Manager Willis introduced Item 2, with Conservation Programs Manager Kleinrock 
providing an overview and summary. Ms. Willis mentioned that updates and changes to the 
Conservation Specialist I/II job descriptions would be presented at the Board of Directors meeting 
in May. She stressed the importance of staff retention concerning Item 6, indicating that the 
modifications aimed to offer clear promotional paths for employees within the Conservation 
Programs Department. Additionally, Ms. Willis clarified that these changes would not impact the 
prospective Classification and Compensation study, which is slated for inclusion in the next budget 
cycle. 
 
Conservation Programs Manager Kleinrock detailed the proposed updates and changes within the 
Conservation Specialist I/II job descriptions. He outlined the departmental requirements, the need 
for local landscape professionals to adhere to new state regulations, and the revised 
responsibilities of the Conservation Specialist I/II positions, aligning with these demands. Among 
the updates, Mr. Kleinrock highlighted enhanced interagency communications and legislation 
tracking, crucial for the District's role in educating the public on conservation efforts and 
regulations. Ms. Willis echoed Kleinrock's points, noting landscape professionals' concerns 



 
March 27, 2024: Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5 
   
 
regarding the lack of implementation strategies from state legislators when new conservation or 
landscape related legislation is introduced. Mr. Kleinrock further emphasized that the job 
description changes would empower the District to play a pivotal role in implementing strategies 
when new legislation arises. 
 
Vice President Parker suggested rephrasing the years of experience requirements in the job 
descriptions for clarity. Ms. Willis and Mr. Kleinrock agreed with the suggestion. 
 
Committee Chair Sonnenberg requested that organization charts accompany job description 
items for future meetings. 
 
Treasurer Aldaco proposed modifying the job requirements to outline relevant coursework as 
qualifications alongside work experience, instead of mandating specific undergraduate or 
graduate degrees. Ms. Willis and Mr. Kleinrock agreed with the proposal. 
 
Motion by Committee Chair Sonnenberg, seconded by Vice President Parker, carried 3-0, to 
recommend the Board of Directors approve the proposed updates and changes to the 
Conservation Specialist I/II job descriptions, effective May 13, 2024. 
 
3. REVISION OF DISTRICT POLICY NO. 48 – CELL PHONE USAGE AND STIPEND  
 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Committee: 
1. Review, discuss, provide feedback, and recommend for Board of Director’s 

approval amended District Policy No. 48 – Cell Phone Usage and Stipend, effective 
April 8, 2024 

 
General Manager Willis introduced Item 3, with Administrative Services Manager Fernandez 
providing additional details. Ms. Willis highlighted that the current Push-To-Talk phone system 
used by the District is obsolete and no longer viable for communication. Furthermore, she 
explained the necessity of a smartphone to utilize the new maintenance services application, 
MaintainX, to its full extent. Ms. Fernandez confirmed that the policy had been updated to align 
with current industry standards and assured that the District's Legal Counsel would review it for 
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act and the California Public Records Act prior to the 
Board of Director’s approval. 
 
Treasurer Aldaco pointed out the distinction between "Cell Phone" and "Mobile Phone" but 
suggested using either term interchangeably given the present era. 
 
Committee Chair Sonnenberg emphasized the importance of legal review before presenting the 
policy at the next Regular Board of Directors Meeting for approval. 
 
Motion by Committee Chair Sonnenberg, seconded by Treasurer Aldaco, carried 3-0, to 
recommend the Board of Directors approve the amended District Policy No. 48 – Cell Phone Usage 
and Stipend. 
 



 
March 27, 2024: Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5 
   
 
4. REVIEW UPDATES TO THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL RELATED TO 

POLICY NO. 30, 30-2 – 30-6, 38, AND 39 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Committee: 

1. Review, discuss, provide feedback, and recommend for Board of Director’s 
approval the proposed updates to the District’s Policy and Procedures Manual, 
effective April 8, 2024. 

 
General Manager Willis introduced Item 4, with Administrative Services Manager Fernandez 
offering additional details for the report. Ms. Fernandez summarized and reviewed each policy 
update for the Committee, mentioning that all policies are undergoing review by Legal Counsel. 
She explained that once Legal provides input on the policy updates, the District will make 
necessary amendments, removing or adding details as required. She clarified that no language 
from the original policies has been removed, as the determination of whether certain language 
should be removed will be made by Legal Counsel. 
 
Treasurer Aldaco inquired whether the waiver of a 30-minute meal break applies to field 
employees or office employees and whether 10-minute paid meal breaks are the minimum 
requirement. Ms. Fernandez confirmed that 10 minutes is the required minimum. 
 
Treasurer Aldaco also asked whether the job descriptions or recruitments indicate that the District 
allows for a flexible workweek option. Ms. Fernandez affirmed that all necessary job descriptions 
include a flexible workweek option, noting exceptions for positions that cannot work a flexible 
workweek because of the nature of their position. 
 
Regarding Policy 30-4, Sonnenberg inquired about the availability of flex time when an employee 
works overtime. Ms. Willis provided an explanation of flextime and the requirement to pay 
overtime.  
 
Treasurer Aldaco suggested developing a policy to address secondary job requirements, 
prohibiting employees from leaving early or working within the service area of the District. Ms. 
Fernandez proposed adding language to the policy stipulating that employees with secondary 
employment cannot wear district uniforms or advertise their secondary employment through the 
agency. 
 
Motion by Committee Chair Sonnenberg, seconded by Treasurer Aldaco, carried 3-0, to 
recommend the Board of Directors approve the proposed updates to the District’s Policy and 
Procedures Manual, effective April 8, 2024. 

 
ORAL REPORTS  
Committee Chair Sonnenberg asked for any oral reports. There were no oral reports and no 
suggestions in the Board of Directors suggestion box. 
 



 
March 27, 2024: Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5 
   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Committee Chair Sonnenberg adjourned the Personnel Committee Meeting at 12:05 p.m. to the 
next Regular Board Meeting of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District on Monday, April 8, 
2024, at 2:00 p.m.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 8TH DAY OF APRIL 2024.   
 
 
 
            

     __________________________________ 
Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Brandon Yoshida, Board Clerk 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*** PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK *** 



ITEM NO. 2 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 

BY: Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager  

SUBJECT: AB 1234 – DIRECTOR TRAVEL, TRAINING, AND MEETING REPORT 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve the Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report, reflecting business-related
expenses incurred by the District.

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with Assembly Bill 1234 (AB 1234), effective January 1, 2006, members of the 
Board of Directors are required to provide a brief report on meetings attended at the expense of 
the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body. 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 

In response to AB 1234, a Board of Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report has been 
created and is placed on the Board Agenda Consent Calendar monthly. It provides the required 
brief report on meetings that Board members attended in March 2024. 

DATE EVENT BOARD MEMBER 
3/11/2024 Regular Board of Directors Meeting President Ligtenberg, Vice 

President Parker, Treasurer 
Aldaco, Directors Layton, 
Sonnenberg, Coker & 
Gulmahamad 

3/21/2024 CBWCD Open House & Art Showcase President Ligtenberg, Vice 
President Parker, Directors 
Coker, Gulmahamad & 
Sonnenberg 

3/22/2024 CBWCD Confluence Property Tour President Ligtenberg, Vice 
President Parker, & Director 
Sonnenberg 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

DATE  EVENT  BOARD MEMBER 
3/27/2024 CBWCD Personnel Committee Meeting Vice President Parker, 

Treasurer Aldaco, & Director 
Sonnenberg 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. Anticipated Director attendance and associated expenses are included in the Fiscal Year 
Budget. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

None 
 



ITEM NO. 3 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2024 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager    
   
SUBJECT: AB 1234 – DIRECTOR COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT REPORT 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Approve the Compensation and Reimbursement Report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Per Policy 47, dated November 9, 2020, “Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and 
Ethics Training”, Exhibit A, Category C reflects the following: 
 
CATEGORY C – Meetings at Partner Organizations 
 

At the beginning of each Fiscal Year, Board Members will vote on assignments for attendance at 
meetings of each organization listed below to ensure broad, diverse, and consistent District 
representation at such events. A primary and alternate will be chosen. If the primary and 
alternate members designated are both unable to attend, another member may be later 
designated for this purpose. At events considered to be of particular importance, multiple 
directors may be authorized to attend. Compensation and reimbursement for attendance at 
Category C meetings may be approved post-attendance on the Board’s consent calendar.  
 

a. Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) 
b. Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts (ASBCSD) 
c. California Groundwater Coalition (CGD) 
d. California Special Districts Association (CSDA) 
e. Cal Trust 
f. Chino Basin Watermaster 
g. Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) 
h. Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC) 
i. Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) 
j. Joint Powers Authority (JPIA) 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

k. LAIF 
l. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
m. Metropolitan Water District (MWD) 
n. Monte Vista Water District 
o. Southern California Water Committee (SCWC) 
p. Southern California Storm Water Taskforce 
q. Southern California Recycled Water Taskforce 
r. Urban Water Institute (UWI) 
s. Water Education Foundation (WEF) 
 

Please refer to Policy No. 47 for further information. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
Below is a list of events attended by specified Board Members:   
 

DATE EVENT BOARD MEMBER 
3/11/2024 ASBCSD General Meeting  Vice President Parker 

3/18/2024  ASBCSD Membership Meeting Vice President Parker, 
Treasurer Aldaco, 
Directors Coker & 
Gulmahamad 

3/25/2024 SCWC Recycled Water Taskforce Meeting Treasurer Aldaco 

3/26/2024 City of Upland State of the City Vice President Parker 

3/27/2024 City of Ontario State of the City Treasurer Aldaco, 
Directors Coker & 
Gulmahamad 

3/28/2024 SCWC Stormwater Taskforce Meeting Treasurer Aldaco 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. Anticipated Director attendance and associated expenses are included in the Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 budget. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
None 



Director Aldaco Virtual Meetings/Events March 2024 

 
1. CBWCD Board Meeting – March 11th (2:00 p.m.):  Review, Discuss, Approve, or Continue Board Agenda Items. 

 
2. ASBCSD Monthly Meeting – March 18th (6:00 p.m.): IEUA hosted the meeting held at the Centro Basco Restaurant in 

Chino.  ASBCSD President Milford Harrison called the meeting to order followed by introducing IEUA Director Michael 
Camacho to provide opening comments and introduction of IEUA General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh.  Shivaji 
provided an overview of IEUA’s water resource programs; the Chino Basin Program; Workforce development; Local 
open house events; and career opportunities.  The program included a video presentation, lead by IEUA staff.  
 

3. SCWC Recycled Water Taskforce Meeting – March 25th (1:30 p.m.):  Agenda Topics – Introductions (15 Participants); 
Santa Monica SWIP [Sustainable Water Infrastructure Project] Facility (Sunny Wang); DPR Educational Video 
Development (Charley); State Legislative Investment Overview (Glenn Farrel); and Recycled Water in the News (online 
articles). 

• Glenn provided an update of the State Budget – shortfall anywhere from $30B to $70B affecting multiple 
needs Bond requests [e.g., education, housing, climate] due to lack of clarity regarding Bond and the 
Governor’s priorities. 

•  Charley spoke about the status of the DBR video presentation – lack of funding for project ($150-200K) 
thereby polling the group to establish the value of the video and/or their awareness of other means of 
educating and communicating the benefits of Direct Potable Reuse of Recycled Water. 

• Sunny gave a brief presentation (oral & slide) about their experience with Indirect Potable Reuse.  They 
currently blend storm water with their treated waste water (30% - 70% respectively) due to stormwater 
runoff containing industrial contaminants.  He also touched on their progress moving towards Direct Potable 
Reuse.  Being that they have full support of their Mayor and Council, he believes public perception should 
be a non-issue.  The only challenges he foresees are Operator Certification and the cost of process water - 
$2400 to $2500/acre foot.   

• The next Recycled Water Taskforce meeting will be May 20, 2024. 
 

4. CBWCD Personnel Committee Meeting – March 27th (11:00 a.m.):  Committee members Ryan Sonnenberg, Kati 
Parker, and Gil Aldaco met to review, discuss, and provide direction to staff on the following items:   Retroactive pay 
to administrative Assistant II position for duties performed outside of classification; Conservation Specialist I/II job 
descriptions update; Revision of District Policy No. 48; Review updates to the District’s Policy and Procedures Manual 
related to Policy Nos. 30, 30-2 through 30-6, 38, and 39.  
 

5. City of Ontario State of the City – February 27th (5:00 p.m.):  Held at the Ontario Convention Center.  Mayor Paul S. 
Leon welcomed attendees to the 2024 State of the City “Our Groundbreaking Year” program.  The Chaffey High School 
marching band kicked off the event followed by Mayor introductions of key-members of the audience leading to a 
video presentation of Ontario’s accomplishments and future achievements to solidify Ontario as the “Premier 
Community of the Inland Empire.”   It was quite an extravaganza! 
 

6. SCWC Stormwater Taskforce Meeting – March 28th (1:00 p.m.): Agenda Topics – Introductions (15 participants); 
CASQA Overview & Priorities (Karen Cowan, Executive Director); Cloud Seeding (Jeff Mosher, SAWPA General 
Manager); Legislative Review & Funding (Glenn Farrel); and, Stormwater in the News (online articles) 

• The CASQA Overview and the Cloud Seeding presenters were not available due to scheduling conflicts. 
• Lisa Haney (OCWD Executive Director of Planning and Natural Resources) filled in with brief highlights of her 

agency’s stormwater project. 
• Glenn provided updates of the State Budget – shortfall anywhere from $30B to $70B affecting multiple 

needs Bond requests [e.g., education, housing, climate] due to lack of clarity regarding Bond and the 
Governor’s priorities.  He also urged the group to lobby legislators for water infrastructure project funding. 

• Meeting concluded early with closing comments from Charley encouraging all to attend the upcoming April 
19th Quarterly Luncheon at Wilson Creek Winery. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



ITEM NO. 4 
 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR FEBRUARY 2024 



ATTACHMENT 1

































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*** PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK *** 



ITEM NO. 5 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2024 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01, AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHINO BASIN WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, ADOPTING A POLICY PROHIBITING CAMPING ON 
DISTRICT OWNED PROPERTIES 

   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Introduce and Conduct First Reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 2024-01, an 
Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District, 
adopting a policy prohibiting camping on District owned properties. 

 
BACKGROUND  
 
To address problems experienced in the past with unauthorized camping on District owned 
properties, the Administrative Services Department produced the proposed Ordinance to 
address and remedy such problems. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
Currently, the District has no formal policy prohibiting unauthorized camping on District owned 
properties. By adopting and implementing this proposed Ordinance, the District will specifically 
address and authorize remedial measures to be taken in response to unauthorized camping on 
District owned property. 
 
The proposed Ordinance will prohibit camping in or on Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
owned properties and facilities, without express written authorization, and identifies the types 
of prohibited camps and camping facilities.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with the staff recommendation. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1: Ordinance No. 2024-01, An Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the Chino Basin 
water Conservation District, Adopting a Policy Prohibiting Camping on District Owned Properties 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
ADOPTING A POLICY PROHIBITING CAMPING ON 
DISTRICT OWNED PROPERTIES 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHINO BASIN 
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:   
 
 SECTION 1.  Purpose and Authority. The purpose of this Ordinance is to 
establish a District policy prohibiting the establishment or erection of a camp or camping 
facility, as defined herein, or camping on Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
(District) owned properties or facilities. 
 

SECTION 2.  Prohibition of Camping. The following definitions, provisions and 
statement are hereby ordained by the Board of Directors: 

 
A. Camp or camping facility. Camp or camping facility means tents, huts, other 

physical shelters (whether of natural or synthetic material), cots, beds, bedding 
material, hammocks, bedrolls, or fire pits. 

B. Camping prohibited. No person shall erect, maintain, or occupy a camp or 
camping facility of any kind on any area owned or operated by the Chino Basin 
Water Conservation District, unless specifically authorized by the District in 
writing prior to erection of the camp or camping facility. 

C. Enforcement. Any person or persons violating this Ordinance will be requested 
to promptly dismantle and remove from District property the camp or camping 
facility. Alternatively, local law enforcement or code enforcement services may 
be contacted and requested to arrange for the removal of any camp or camping 
facility, and for the removal of any person who does not have written 
authorization from the District to be on District owned property.  

 
SECTION 3.  Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 

sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held 
to be unconstitutional or unlawful, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The Board of Directors hereby 
declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 
sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held to be 
unconstitutional or unlawful. 
 

SECTION 4.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective and be in full 
force and operation from and after thirty-one (31) days after its final passage and 
adoption. 
 

SECTION 5. Publication. The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of the 
Ordinance and shall cause the same to be published or posted according to law. 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



 
 
 

 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 13th day of May 2024. 
   
 

 
         

Mark Ligtenberg, Board President 
 
 
ATTEST:            

Elizabeth Willis, Board Secretary 
 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced at the regular board 
meeting on the 8th day of April 2024 and was adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District at the meeting held on the 13th day of May 2024 
by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:  
 
 

         
     Elizabeth Willis, Board Secretary 

 
 

 
 

 



ITEM NO. 6 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2024 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: APPROVE UPDATED DISTRICT POLICY NO. 48 – CELL PHONE USAGE AND STIPEND 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:  
 

1. Review, discuss, and approve District Policy 48 – Cell Phone Usage and S�pend, effec�ve 
April 8, 2024; and 

2. Direct staff to update the District’s Policy and Procedures Manual. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
On July 25, 2008, the Board of Directors authorized cell phone allowances of $92 a month for the 
General Manager and $58 for the Assistant General Manager, Conserva�on Specialist II, and 
Conserva�on Specialist III posi�ons. 
 
At its August 2015 mee�ng, the Board approved posi�on �tle and classifica�on changes to 
establish an Execu�ve Management Team consis�ng of the Execu�ve Director, Deputy Execu�ve 
Director, Community Programs Manager, and Conserva�on Programs Manager. Since these 
replaced exis�ng posi�ons that were authorized to receive cell phone reimbursements, they were 
provided the monthly cell phone reimbursement as well. At an undetermined point, the Facili�es 
and Landscape Supervisor was authorized to receive the same reimbursement. When the �tle for 
that posi�on was upgraded to Facili�es and Opera�ons Manager, the reimbursement con�nued.  
 
On July 11, 2018, the Board of Directors approved changes to the cell phone reimbursement 
authoriza�on to include the Landscape Maintenance Lead posi�on that was previously classified 
as the Landscape Maintenance Worker III posi�on in May of 2017. The Landscape Maintenane 
Worker III posi�on was reclassified as the Facili�es and Basin Technician in January 2021 and the 
reimbursement con�nued.  
 
On March 27, 2024, the Personnel Commitee met to discuss the updates to Policy No. 48, and it 
was recommended that staff bring this item before the Board on April 8, 2024, for considera�on 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

of increasing the monthly cell phone s�pend from $58 to $65 for Execu�ve Management 
employees and clarify language related to records management and reten�on for personally 
owned cell phones used by District employees.  
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The cell phone policy was not updated to reflect the changes previously approved by the Board 
as of July 2018. It was also only tailored to establish usage guidelines for field employees using 
“push to talk” technology to effec�vely communicate business needs and safety concerns to each 
other and records management/reten�on guidelines.  
 
The District recently implemented a facility and property management system, MaintainX, to 
increase its workforce produc�vity by making it easier to schedule, record, and monitor 
maintenance work orders and maintain asset management. As a result, the new cell phones 
(smart phones) were purchased to replace the “push to talk” phones. Cell phones have been 
assigned to field employees who either respond to work orders and/or regularly use a cellphone 
in performance of their job du�es. The new cellphones allow employees to effec�vely 
communicate without being limited to the “push to talk” feature.  
 
Currently, it is necessary to update the exis�ng policy to establish a set of guidelines, criteria, and 
condi�ons governing the usage of District provided cell phones and for reimbursement of 
business use of personal cell phones for the Execu�ve Management team. Execu�ve 
Management employees will con�nue to be eligible to receive a cell phone s�pend in lieu of a 
District owned cell phone. The District will be responsible for paying the monthly standard plan 
of the new cell phones, including data usage; therefore, all employees who have been assigned a 
District cell phone will no longer be eligible for the s�pend. With the excep�on of Execu�ve 
Management and/or on-call employees, District cell phones will need to remain at the District 
headquarters.  
 
The exis�ng authorized monthly s�pend to employees for the use of personally owned cell 
phones is $92 a month ($1,104 annually) for the General Manager and $58 a month ($696 
annually per manager) for all other managers. The Personnel Commitee recommended 
increasing the monthly cell phone s�pend to $65 for all members of the Execu�ve Management 
team ($780 annually per manager). This change makes the allowance even across all managers.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The fiscal impact is es�mated to be $3,900 per year within the FY 2023-2024 budget, a difference 
of $12. Reimbursements for exis�ng and proposed cell phone s�pends are included in Accounts 
50120 (Salary Employee Wages) and 50130 (Hourly Employee Wages).  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Atachment 1: Policy No. 48 – Cell Phone Usage and S�pend 



Policy No.:   48 
Issue No.:   12 
Effective Date:  04/13/09 04/08/24 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject:  Mobile Cell Phone PolicyUsage and Stipend 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

 
Policy No. 48 – Mobile Cell Phone Policy Usage and Stipend 
 
 
 
Purpose: To establish a set of guidelines, criteria, and conditions governing the usage 
of the usage policy for District provided mobile cell phones and for reimbursement of 
business use of personal cell phones.  
 
Policy/Procedure: The District will provide District owned cell phones to eligible 
employees makes available for to be used solely for the purpose of conducting the 
District’s business employee use during business activities mobile phones for field 
employees.  The purpose of these phones is to provide employees who either respond to 
work orders and/or regularly use a cell phone in performance of their job duties with in 
the field with “Push to Talk” technology that allows them to effectively communicate 
business needs and safety concerns to each other when they are in the field. Executive 
Management employees are eligible to receive a cell phone stipend in lieu of a District 
owned cell phone.  Employees that are listed as “on-call” during nights and weekends will 
be allowed to take the District cell phone home.  
 
1. Eligibility:  

Eligibility includes the Executive Management employees (Managers and above) or 
determined on a case-by-case basis and approved by the General Manager and/or 
designee. 
 

2. Use of District Owned Cell Phones: 
Cell phones provided by the District for work related use are to be protected by the 
employee and returned when employment ends. Mobile Cell phones are considered 
District property, and the District will pay for the entire cost of the device and data 
usage. This option is limited to a standard plan and business-related purchases. 
Phone usage should be limited to District business needs and emergency situations. 
Personal use of District phones is prohibited.  
 
At the end of the employee’s  work shift,  mobile cell phones are to be placed in their 
charger at the District office headquarters to be ready for their next use. With the 
exception of Executive Management and/or on-call employees, District cell phones 
are not allowed to leave the District office once the employee’s work shift ends.  
 

3. Use of Personally Owned Cell Phones: 
The District has elected to provide a monetary monthly stipend to Executive 
Management employees. A cell phone acquired by this method is the personal 
property of the employee and the employee is responsible for paying the entire cost 
of the device and data usage. 
 

4. Reimbursement Procedures: 

ATTACHMENT 1



Policy No.:   48 
Issue No.:   12 
Effective Date:  04/13/09 04/08/24 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject:  Mobile Cell Phone PolicyUsage and Stipend 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

The District will provide a monthly stipend of up to a maximum of $65 per month ($780 
annually / $30 per pay period) for Executive Management employees who choose to 
use their personally owned cell phone in lieu of a District owned one.  
 

5. Cell Phone Equipment: 
Employees that may pose a higher risk of damaging District owned cell phones are 
required to use a durable phone case that can handle rugged working conditions while 
protecting the phone from potential damage, such as an OtterBox case and screen 
protectors. Eligibility for this purchase will be determined on a case-by-case basis and 
approved by the General Manager and/or designee. Purchases will be made by the 
Administrative Services Department.  
 

6. Employee Responsibilities: 
Employees shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the use of 
cell phones while operating a motor vehicle. 
 
Employees assigned a District cell phone and/or receiving the monthly stipend must 
sign the cell phone acknowledgement form.  
 
Employees that are not eligible for a cell phone stipend and who receive a District 
owned cell phone must not conduct or participate in District business communications 
on their personally owned cell phones.  
 

7. Records Management/Retention: 
All electronic communications (e.g., emails and text messages)  related to the conduct 
of the District business are official District records and are the property of the District. 
The District reserves the right to access and disclose all District business messages 
sent through its system District owned cell phones and/or personally owned cell 
phonesfor any purpose. 
 
Messages transmitted over the District mobile cell phones  system should be those 
involved in the District business activities for the accomplishment of business 
relatedbusiness-related tasks or any communication directly related to District 
business, administration, or practices.  
 
The California Public Records Act (CPRA), Government Code Section 6520, requires 
the District to make all public records available for inspection and to provide copies 
upon request. Public records include “any writing containing information relating 
to the conduct of the public’s business”.  
 
As a result, employees should be aware that no cell phone message transmitted on 
the District’s cell phones  system is private or confidential, and District cell phones 
may be examined at any time with or without notice. Furthermore, the District reserves 
the right to examine any District related information transmitted or stored on an 
employee’s personally owned cell phones.  Such examinations may occur at any time 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold



Policy No.:   48 
Issue No.:   12 
Effective Date:  04/13/09 04/08/24 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject:  Mobile Cell Phone PolicyUsage and Stipend 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

and may or may not include advance notification to the employee. If the examination 
is performed as part of an investigation, it will be coordinated with the employee’s 
management and Administration Department and follow the steps below: 
 

a. The Administration Department shall communicate the request for records to 
the employee or official who may have such information in personal devices or 
accounts. 

b. The Administration Department shall reasonably rely on the employee to 
search their own personal files, accounts, and devices for responsive materials. 

c. If the employee asserts to the District that they do not have any responsive 
records on their personal device or accounts, the employee may be required 
by a court to submit an affidavit providing the factual basis for determining 
whether a record is a public or personal record. 

 
By accepting the monthly stipend, eEmployees agree that they have should have no 
reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to any use and , including storage, 
business or personal,  of the business related communication on personally owned 
District’s cell phone ssystems. 

 
 
 
Revision: 
Issue No. 01: 04/13/09, Original policy. 
Issue No. 02: 04/08/24, Updated to include updated usage guidelines. (Pending Board 
Approval) 
 
 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Ligatures: None

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Ligatures: None



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*** PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK *** 



  ITEM NO. 7 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2024 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager  
   
SUBJECT: APPROVE UPDATED DISTRICT POLICY NOS. 30, 30-2 - 30-6, 38, AND 39 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:  

 
1. Review, discuss, approve District Policy Nos. 30, 30-2 - 30-6, 38, and 39 effective April 8, 

2024; and, 
2. Direct staff to update the District’s Policy and Procedures Manual. 

 
BACKGROUND  
 
As with other policies, the District’s Policy and Procedures Manual needs to be updated 
periodically to address changes in the law, best practices, and the District’s operations. Staff has 
begun working on a comprehensive review of the manual and will be recommending proposed 
revisions as needed.  
 
The objective of the Manual is to provide fair and equitable management of the District’s 
personnel. The Manual is intended to ensure uniform and fair treatment for District employees 
and to define guidelines for all employees of the District.   
 
On March 27, 2024, the Personnel Commitee met to discuss the recommended updates to Policy 
Nos. 30, 30-2 - 30-6, 38, and 39, and asked clarifying ques�ons related to the policies. The 
Commitee recommended that staff further review the language related to wage garnishments in 
Policy No. 30 and secondary employment language in Policy 30-4, and to bring this item for 
considera�on of approval on April 8, 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The major revisions are summarized below:  

• Policy No. 30 – Timekeeping and Payroll Administration: This policy was updated to include 
clear guidelines on timekeeping procedures, enforcement, paydays and submittal deadlines, 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 

changing employee information, and completion of personnel action form for personnel files. 
The policy title was also updated from Timesheet Submittals and Payroll-related Employee 
Status Changes.  
o Original Policy No. 32 – Compensation, Work Schedules and Records and Reports 

contained language related to payroll deductions, wage garnishments, and FLSA non-
exempt employees. That language was removed from the policy and incorporated into 
Policy No. 30, as it relates to Timekeeping and Payroll Administration. No changes were 
made to that section. Language relating to wage garnishments was removed. 

• Policy No. 30-2 – Meal and Rest Periods: Original Policy No. 32 – Compensation, Work 
Schedules and Records and Reports contained language related to meals and rest periods.  
Staff believes it would be best contained as a separate policy for the purposes of clarity for 
the reader. The proposed policy provides detailed guidelines for meal and rest periods for 
employees (original language is noted and changed entirely). 

• Policy No. 30-3 – Alternative Work Week Schedule: This policy was renamed and updated to 
include the employee benefits of an alternative work week schedule.  It was also updated to 
clarify the language throughout in the “Introduction”, “Policy”, “Eligibility”, and “Flexibility” 
sections (policy is redlined to show revisions).  

• Policy No. 30-4 – Work Schedule: Original Policy No. 32 – Compensation, Work Schedules and 
Records and Reports contained language related to work schedules that staff believes would 
be best contained as a separate policy. The original language was incorporated into the 
proposed policy but was updated to define the District’s work hours, define a traditional work 
week, update the alternative work week definition, update the “Flex Time” section to comply 
with California labor law, remove repetitive language, and clarify language throughout (policy 
is redlined to show revisions). 

• Policy No. 30-5 – Compensation: Original Policy No. 32 – Compensation, Work Schedules and 
Records and Reports contained language related compensation that staff believes would be 
best contained as a separate policy. The original language was incorporated in the proposed 
policy and minimal changes were made to it. However, the policy was updated to include 
detailed language related to salary, performance evaluations, compensation review, merit-
based step increases, and cost of living adjustment (COLA) guidelines (policy is redlined to 
show revisions). 

• Policy No. 30-6 – Personnel Records and Access: Original Policy No. 32 – Compensation, Work 
Schedules and Records and Reports contained language related to “Records and Reports” that 
staff believes would be best contained as a separate policy. The original language was 
incorporated into the proposed policy and had minimal updates (policy is redlined to show 
revisions). 

• Policy No. 38 – Vacation: The policy procedures/sections were categorized by subject such as 
“Eligibility”, “Accrual”, etc. enhance user-friendliness. The policy was also updated to include 
vacation request procedures, recommend adjusting the maximum accrual of hours, update 
vacation usage tracking, clarify separation of employment language, and add the option to 
payout vacation. Adding the vacation payout option provides several benefits such as financial 
planning and flexibility for employees and may improve productivity and attendance for the 
District.  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

• Policy No. 39 – Holidays: This policy was updated to clarify language related to floating 
holiday eligibility and conditions. 

 
Staff submitted the proposed policy changes to the District’s insurance provider, ACWA JPIA, and 
District’s labor law counsel prior to Board approval. Staff incorporated ACWA JPIA’s feedback, 
including feedback received from the District’s labor law counsel to be compliant with state and 
federal law, while addressing the Personnel Committee’s feedback. Pending adoption, staff will 
update and share the updated Policy and Procedures Manual with all employees.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1:  Policy No. 30 – Timekeeping and Payroll Administration 
Attachment 2:  Policy No. 30-2 – Meal and Rest Periods  
Attachment 3:  Policy No. 30-3 – Alternative Work Week Schedule 
Attachment 4:  Policy No. 30-4 – Work Schedule 
Attachment 5:  Policy No. 30-5 – Compensation 
Attachment 6:  Policy No. 30-6 – Personnel Records and Access 
Attachment 7:  Policy No. 30-2 – Compensation, Work Schedules and Records and Reports, 
original policy with redlines and without redlines (ORIGINAL POLICY) 
Attachment 8: Policy No. 38 – Vacation Pay 
Attachment 9: Policy No. 39 – Holiday Pay 

 



Policy No.:   30 
Issue No.:   34 
Effective Date:  03/01/98 04/08/24 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject: Timesheet Submittals Keeping and Payroll -related Employee Status 

ChangesAdministration 
 
Policy No. 30 – Timekeeping sheet Submittals and Payroll Administration-related 
Employee Status Changes 
 
Purpose:   To establish the procedures and time frames/deadlines for submission of 
payroll timesheet and personnel actions which affect the processing of the District’s 
biweekly payroll. 
 
Policy/Procedure: 
Accurately reporting time worked is the responsibility of every employee. The District must 
keep an accurate record of actual time worked to calculate employee pay and benefits. 
To enable the District to process an efficient and timely biweekly payroll, the following 
deadlines have been established: 
 
1. Timekeeping – Nonexempt employees must accurately record the time they begin and 

end their work daily. They must also record the beginning and ending time of any split 
shift or departure from work for personal reasons. Altering, falsifying, or tampering 
with time records is prohibited and subjects the employee to discipline, up to including 
termination. Exempt employees are required to record their daily work attendance and 
report full and/or partial days of absence from work for reasons such as leaves of 
absence, sick, vacation, administrative leave, etc. 
 
a. Non-exempt employees may not start work until their scheduled starting time. 
b. It is the employee’s responsibility to approve timecards to certify the accuracy of 

all time recorded.  
c. Any errors in the timesheet should be reported immediately to their department 

manager and/or the administrative services manager, who will correct errors as 
soon as practicable. 
 

2. Enforcement – Altering, falsifying, tampering with time records, or recording time on 
another employee's time record may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment. 
 

1.3. Paydays and Submittal Deadlines – Effective on March 1, 1998, the District pays 
salaried and hourly employees on a bi-weekly basis, with payroll cutoff at 11:59 p.m. 
Saturday. (Pay periods run for fourteen consecutive calendar days.) 

a. On their last workday and/or no later than Friday  at 9:00 a.m. at the end of of each 
bi-weekly pay period, each hourly non-exempt employee will complete, 
signapprove, date and submit their timesheet to their supervisor Department 
Manager for approval..  

b. Employees are paid every other Thursday for two weeks prior. Direct deposit funds 
will be available on that payday Thursday. 

ATTACHMENT 1



Policy No.:   30 
Issue No.:   34 
Effective Date:  03/01/98 04/08/24 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject: Timesheet Submittals Keeping and Payroll -related Employee Status 

ChangesAdministration 
 

b. The District will process paychecks and issue them to all employees within seven 
days following the cutoff date. 

c. Transactions received before the cutoff will be processed in the current pay period. 
Transactions received after the cutoff will be processed in the following pay period. 
These transactions include, but are not limited to: 

 
• Merit-based step increases. 
• Promotions/demotions. 
• Insurance changes that affect premium amounts. 
• State and/or Federal Income Tax withholdings (W-4 Changes). 
• Deferred compensation withholding changes. 
• Terminations, resignationsresignations, and retirements. 
• Cost of living adjustments. 

 
4. Changing Employee Information – The current address and phone numbers are 

essential for payroll administration purposes. These changes should be noted in 
writing or via email as soon as possible. Each employee is responsible for notifying 
the Administrative Services Manager of changes in their personal status including, but 
not limited to: 
 
a. Name and/or marital status. 
b. Address and/or telephone number. 
c. Number of eligible family members for health benefits. 
d. Tax payroll deductions. 
e. Emergency contact information. 
f. Changes to deferred compensation. 

 
5. Personnel Action Forms (PAF) – Department Managers are responsible for completing 

and submitting a PAF, to the Administration Services Manager, for employees in their 
department when there are changes in their personnel/employment status, including 
but not limited to: 
 
a. Appointments such as new hire, promotion, demotion, layoff, resignation, 

termination, etc. 
b. Personnel changes such as salary/title change, transfer, leave of absence, work 

schedule change, etc. 
 

6. Payroll Deductions – The District will provide for payroll deduction of the following 
amounts in addition to the normal federal and state tax withholdings and benefit 
payments required by law: 
 



Policy No.:   30 
Issue No.:   34 
Effective Date:  03/01/98 04/08/24 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject: Timesheet Submittals Keeping and Payroll -related Employee Status 

ChangesAdministration 
 

a. Amounts necessary to adjust jury duty payments received by employees or similar 
payments received by the employee for periods previously compensated by the 
District, upon verification of payment by the court. 
 

b. Appropriate sums shall be withheld from the pay checks of District employees for: 
• Medicare  
• OASDI 
• CA SDI 
• Social Security 

 
7. Wage Garnishment – employee wage garnishments created additional work onfor 

the office staff. Discharge because of multiple garnishments is permitted by law. 
Therefore, the District policy is that wage levies for multiple garnishments shall be 
considered grounds for dismissal. 
 

8. FLSA Non-exempt Employees – shall be paid at their respective wage rate on the 
basis of timecards turned in. Any timecards not turned in by the day after the end of 
the pay period may be grounds for discipline. Each employee is responsible for 
preparing an individual timecard. This includes workdays, time on sick leave, time off 
due to work-related injury, authorized holidays, and vacations. 

 
a. Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed time and a 

half for all work performed in any workday beyond the schedule established by the 
Alternative Work Week agreement, up to 12 hours a day, or for all work performed 
in any week beyond the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week 
agreement for that week.  
 

b. Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed double the 
employee's regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 12 in any workday 
and for all hours worked in excess of eight hours on the seventh consecutive day 
of work in a workweek. 

 
 

 
Revision: 
Issue No. 02: 02/12/97 
Issue No. 03: 03/01/98 
Issue No. 04: 04/08/24, updated to include timekeeping and payroll administration 
procedures. 
 
 
 



 
(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN THEM AS A 

SEPARATE POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-2  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Meal and Rest Periods 
 
Purpose: The District provides all non-exempt employees who work more than five 
hours in a workday with an uninterrupted, duty-free, 30-minute or 60-minute meal 
period that shall begin no later than the end of the fifth hour of work. The District also 
provides all employees with the opportunity to take a 10-minute paid rest break 
during every four hours worked (or major fraction thereof), which should be taken as 
far as practicable in the middle of each work period.  
 
Policy/Procedures: Employees are generally authorized and permitted to schedule 
their meal and rest breaks at their own discretion under this policy; however, 
Department Managers may schedule meal and rest breaks to ensure the smooth 
operation of their departments and/or the organization as a whole.  
 
Meal Periods: 
1. Eligibility – Non-exempt employees who work more than five hours in a 

workday are provided and afforded an uninterrupted, duty-free, 30-minute or 
60-minute meal period that is to begin no later than the end of the fifth hour of 
work. Non-exempt employees who work more than 10 hours in a workday are 
provided and afforded a second uninterrupted, duty-free, 30-minute or 60-
minute meal period that is to begin no later than the end of the 10th hour of 
work. 
 
a. Employees are to be relieved of all duty during their meal period, so that 

employees are free to use their meal period times as they wish. The District 
schedules work assignments with the expectation that all employees will 
take their duty-free meal periods, and the agency encourages employees 
to do so. 

b. Employees are expected to accurately reflect their duty-free meal period 
on their timecard. At no time may any employee perform off-the-clock work 
or otherwise alter, falsify or manipulate any aspect of their time-keeping 
records to inaccurately reflect or hide meal periods taken or time spent 
working during meal periods. 
 

2. On-Duty Meal Periods - in limited situations when the nature of employees’ 
duties prevents the employees from being relieved of all duty, certain 
designated employees may be authorized to work an “on-duty meal period.” 
Employees will be permitted to take an on-duty meal period only if the nature 
of their job duties requires an on-duty meal period, and the employees and the 
District have agreed in advance and in writing to an on-duty meal period. In 
this situation, the on-duty meal period will be paid and treated as regular hours 
worked. 
 
a. Employees may not take “on-duty meal periods” without prior preapproval 

from their Department Manager and/or Administrative Services Manager. 

ATTACHMENT 2



 
(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN THEM AS A 

SEPARATE POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-2  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Meal and Rest Periods 
 

  
3. Waiver of Meal Period - Employees may waive their meal periods only when 

they complete their workday in six hours. If employees work more than 10 
hours in a day, they may waive their second meal periods only if they take their 
first meal periods and they do not work more than 12 hours that day. 
 
a. Employees wishing to waive a meal period are required to submit a 

completed and signed meal period waiver form to the Administrative 
Services Manager. As such, this waiver does not apply to employees who 
will be working regularly scheduled nine- and eight-hour days. 
 

Rest Periods: 
1. Eligibility – employees are permitted and authorized to take a paid, duty-free 

10-minute rest break during each four-hour shift or major fraction thereof. The 
District generally will not authorize a rest break for employees whose total daily 
work time is less than three and one-half hours. 
 
a. Rest breaks may not be combined with meal periods, and they may not be 

used to shorten the workday. 
 

2. Rest breaks are counted as hours worked; therefore, employees are not 
required to record their rest breaks on their timecards or in the District’s 
timekeeping system. 

 
Rest breaks will be provided as follows: 
 

Shift 
(Hours Worked in a Day) Number of Paid Rest Breaks 

At least 3.5 but less than 6 hours 1 

At least 6 but less than 10 hours 2 

At least 10 but less than 14 hours 3 
 
 

Original language from Policy No. 30-2 
1.  Meal and Rest Periods – under California labor law a 30-minute unpaid meal 

break is provided to all employees who work more than five hours. An employee 
has the option to waive this lunch period provided that s/he has not worked more 
than six hours with supervisor’s approval.  As such, this waiver does not apply to 
CBWCD employees who will be working regularly scheduled nine- and eight-
hour days.  Employees are provided with a net 10-minute paid rest period for 
every four hours worked or major fraction thereof. Insofar as is practicable, the 



 
(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN THEM AS A 

SEPARATE POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-2  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Meal and Rest Periods 
 

rest period should be in the middle of the work period.  The Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement (DLSE) considers anything more than two hours to be a 
“major fraction of four.”  A rest period is not required for employees whose total 
daily work time is less than three and one-half hours. The rest period is counted 
as time worked and therefore, the employer must pay for such periods. 

 
Revision: 
Issue No. 1 – 04/08/24, policy previously existed under Policy No. 30-2 – 
Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports; Removed meal/rest period 
language to create a separate policy.  
 



Policy No.:   30-3  
Issue No.:   23 
Effective Date: 04/13/0904/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:    Alternative Work Week ScheduleWritten Disclosure 
 
Policy No. 30-3 – Alternative Work Week Schedule Written Disclosure 
 
Purpose: The purpose of this document is to support and establish the creation of an 
Alternative Work Week to promote employee well-being, enhance employee morale, 
decreased absenteeism, work-life balance, and increased productivity..  
 
Policy/Procedure:   
Chino Basin Water Conservation District (“District”) Alternative Work Week Written 
Disclosure: 
 
1. Introduction – CBWCD has investigated moving from a Iin addition to a tTraditional 

lyWork Week scheduled forty hour(40-hour work week consisting of five eight-hour 
days), five-day work week to an , the District offers its employees an Alternative Work 
Week schedule.  An Alternative Work Week is defined as any regularly scheduled 
work week that requires an employee to work more than eight hours in one 24 hour 
period. 

 
2. Policy – The District has determined through communications with its employees that 

the 9/80 work week would be the Alternative Work Week most agreeable to its 
employees, and therefore to the District.  In a scheduled two-week, 80-hour pay 
period, employees who request an alternative work week schedule and receive 
approval for it, will work eight nine-hour days and one eight-hour day and have one 
eight-hour workday off every two weeks. It is important to note that the Alternative 
Work Week schedule is not appropriate for all positions, or in all settings, or for all 
employees, and must be preapproved by the Department Manager and General 
Manager. Pay periods begin at 12:00 p.m. on designated Fridays and/or flex day and 
extend through 11:59 a.m. on alternate Fridays and/or flex day. Full-time employees 
on a management- approved Alternative Work Week schedule may use one hour of 
vacation and/or administration time during District paid holidays within their first six 
months of service to be paid for the 9th hour of the day and receive one full paid day 
off during a District holiday; however, employees may not use sick time accrual for 
this purpose. 
 

3. Eligibility – This policy shall apply to eligible full-time employees who wish to 
participate in the Alternative Work Week schedule, for Departments that have decided 
to offer it.  Probationary employees accrue vacation and sick leave, but may not use 
the accrued time during the introductory employment period, or extension thereof. To 
be eligible, employees must meet the following criteria: 
 
a.  Have been a full timefull-time permanent employees, currently scheduled to work 

the standard forty hour per week work schedule. 
b. Have satisfactory performance record. 
c. have the approval of their immediate Department Manager. 
d. Have been employed by the District for at least six months. 

ATTACHMENT 3



Policy No.:   30-3  
Issue No.:   23 
Effective Date: 04/13/0904/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:    Alternative Work Week ScheduleWritten Disclosure 
 

 
 

2.4. Disclosure: 
a. Wages: There will be no changes to the employee’s rate of pay as a result of 

changing to an Alternative Work Week. An employee who works under the 
Alternative Work Week will see no changes in that employee’s paycheck from that 
of a standard work week.   

 
b. Overtime: Employees on an Alternative Work Week earn overtime differently than 

those employees who are on a Traditional Work Week scheduleentitled to overtime 
pay after only eight hours per day.  Employees working an Alternative Work Week 
are due time and a half for all work performed in any workday beyond the schedule 
established by the Alternative Work Week agreement, up to 12 hours a day, or for 
all work performed in any week beyond the schedule established by the Alternative 
Work Week agreement. Thus, the employee will be paid time and a half for hours 
worked in excess of nine hours a day on a scheduled nine-hour workday or in 
excess of eight hours on that employee’s scheduled eight hour or for hours in any 
week in excess of the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week 
agreement.  Double time is owed for all work performed in excess of 12 hours per 
day, or in excess of eight hours on an unscheduled workday (refer to Policy No. 
30-1 – Overtime).. 
 

c. Lunch Meal & Break Rest Periods:  Under California labor law, a 30-minute unpaid 
meal break is provided to all non-exempt employees who work more than five 
hours. An employee has the option to waive this lunch period provided that s/he 
has not worked more than six hours with Department Manager approval.  As such, 
this waiver does not apply to DistrictCBWCD employees who will be working 
regularly scheduled nine- and eight-hour days.  A ten-minute rest break is provided 
for every four hours of work.  These lunch and break periods will not be affected 
by the change to the Alternative Work Week (refer to Policy No. 30-2 – Meal and 
Rest Periods). 
 

d. Sick Pay:  The number of sick days and rate of accrual will remain unchanged by 
the Alternative Work Week schedule.  However, the rate of usage will change 
slightly as an employee who calls in sick on a day scheduled for nine hours will 
have those nine hours deducted from that employee’s sick time, instead of the 
eight hours that would have been deducted under a traditional work schedule or 
the 9/80 Alternative Work Week scheduled eight-hour day. Sick pay may not be 
used to supplement the eight-hour of holiday pay. 
 

e. Holiday Pay: If a District observed holiday falls on an employee’s 9/80 Alternative 
Work Week scheduled day off, the employee will accrue eight hours of holiday 
time.  If an observed holiday falls on the employee’s eight-hour workday, the 
employee will be credited with eight hours of holiday pay.  If an observed holiday 



Policy No.:   30-3  
Issue No.:   23 
Effective Date: 04/13/0904/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:    Alternative Work Week ScheduleWritten Disclosure 
 

falls on the employee’s nine-hour workday, the employee may elect to use one 
hour of vacation or floating holiday leave accrual to supplement the eight-hour 
holiday pay (refer to Policy No. 39 – Holidays). 
 

f. Vacation: The number of vacation days and rate of accrual will remain unchanged 
by the Alternative Work Week. However, the rate of usage will change slightly.  If 
an employee takes a one-week vacation the week s/he is scheduled to work five 
days, 44 hours of vacation will be deducted from the employee’s vacation accrual 
for that week.  If an employee takes a one-week vacation during the week 
scheduled for a 9/80 day off, 36 hours will be deducted from the employee’s 
vacation accrual balance.  If an employee takes one day of vacation leave at a 
time, vacation time off will be deducted at the rate of nine hours for nine-hour 
workdays and eight hours for eight-hour workdays (refer to Policy No. 38 – 
Vacation). 

 
5. Flexibility:  Participation in an alternative work week schedule is a privilege, not a right, 

and is voluntary for employees whose Department Managers have decided to offer the 
alternative work week schedule. Management reserves the right to temporarily revert 
the schedule to a traditional work week to accommodate training, special events, or 
other pressing circumstances. Management reserves the right to return to a traditional 
work schedule any time the needs of the District require it or for other work-related 
reasons and must ensure that there is no disruption in the District's operations.  
Management reserves the right to adjust alternative work week schedules for field 
employees working in severe heat weather conditions and/or for operational reasons. 
An employee working an Alternative Work Week who receives an unsatisfactory 
performance evaluation may be returned to the traditional work schedule if the 
supervisor determines the employee’s performance is negatively impacted by the 
Alternative Work Week.  

 
3.6. Medical Benefits:  The health coverage enjoyed by the permanent full-time 

employees of the District will not be affected by the Alternative Work Week. 
 
The District will include a separate listing by officer/employee outlining applicable charges 
in the Director’s Board Meeting package. The listing will be accessible as public record in 
conjunction with the regular Board Meeting materials. 

 
 
Revision: 
Issue No. 02: 04/13/09, Alternative Work Week Written Disclosure. 
Issue No. 03: 04/08/24, updated policy, eligibility requirements and flexibility sections. 



 
(REMOVED LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – 

COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS TO 
CONTAIN AS A SEPARATE POLICY) 

Policy No.:   30-4  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Work Schedule 
 

Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to provide clear guidelines and definitions for 
standard work schedules while facilitating team coordination to meet the District's 
staffing needs and identifying labor law requirements. 
 
Policy/Procedures: The District must ensure consistency with staffing 
requirements during its operating hours while promoting fairness and understanding 
of work schedules across the workforce with the goal of maintaining efficiency 
among employees with varying schedules. 
 
Work Schedule: 
1. Work Hours – as a general rule, departments are to be staffed during the 

District’s operating hours. 
 

2. Traditional Work Week – employees working a traditional 40-hour work week 
consisting of five eight-hour days. 

 
3. Normal Alternative Work Week – CBWCD has determined through 

communications with its employees that the 9/80 work week would be the 
Alternative Work Week most agreeable to its employees, and therefore to the 
District. In a scheduled two-week, 80-hour pay period, employees who request 
an alternative work week schedule and receive approval for it, will work eight 
nine-hour days and one eight-hour day and have one eight-hour work day off 
every two weeks. an employee will work eight nine-hour days and one eight-hour 
day and have one eight- hour work day off every two weeks. It is important to 
note that the Alternative Work Week schedule is not appropriate for all positions, 
or in all settings, or for all employees, and must be preapproved by the 
Department Manager and General Manager. 

 
4. Flex Time – FLSA non-exempt employees cannot request flex time in lieu of 

being paid overtime. flex time for District However, non-exempt employees that 
work overtime during a traditional or alternative work week, may request to leave 
early on a day during the same pay period. Prior written approval from the 
Department Manager and/or General Manager shall be obtained no later than 
the conclusion of the previous work shift is subject to prior approval of the 
General Manager. For FLSA non-exempt employees, flex time must be confined 
to a work week as defined above. For  FLSA exempt employees shall be 
permitted the flexibility to adjust their work schedules it should occur within the 
same pay period.  

 
5. Normal Work Day – in a scheduled two week, 80- hour pay period, an employee 

will work eight nine-our days and one eight-hour day and have one eight-hour 
work day off every two weeks.  

 

ATTACHMENT 4



 
(REMOVED LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – 

COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS TO 
CONTAIN AS A SEPARATE POLICY) 

Policy No.:   30-4  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Work Schedule 
 

6. Secondary Employment and Moonlighting – employees must notify the District 
of all secondary employment if it will affect District operations. All employees are 
prohibited from any secondary employment that interferes with their normal job 
duties or which creates a conflict of interest regarding their primary employment. 
Interference is not limited to an actual conflict in hours of employment or conflict 
of interest, but also includes the ability of the employee to devote his full attention 
to District responsibilities; to be fit for duty, not to be tired from a second job while 
on duty; and not having to switch hours with other employees for the purpose of 
performing a second job.  

 
Any employee who engages in after or before- hours work at a secondary job 
must accomplish the following: 
 
a. Notify Receive the written permission of the General Manager prior to 

accepting secondary employment;  
b. When requested by the General Manager, obtain from the secondary 

employee a waiver of liability for the District from the secondary employer;  
c. It is incumbent on the employee to make it clear to the secondary employer 

that he, the employee, is not performing any duties as a representative of the 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District;  

d. When engaging in secondary employment, the employee is prohibited from 
wearing any uniform of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District; and 

e. Employees may not use District time to perform work for another employer; 
f. Employees may not use District resources, including equipment, tools, 

vehicles, property, facilities, software, communications (including letterhead, 
telephone, email accounts), paperwork, data, trade secrets, or any District-
owned item in an employee’s secondary employment;  

g. Employees may not promote, solicit on behalf of, or advertise their secondary 
employment while on duty and performing their duties as a District employee. 
No District employee may use their position within the District as a means of 
promoting, advertising, or soliciting on behalf of their secondary employer or 
in pursuit of their secondary employment. District employees are required to 
devote their full working attention to their District position while on duty;  

h. Employees must not engage in illegal activity in any secondary employment; 
and  

i. Ensure that any secondary employment does not harm the goodwill or 
reputation of the District or its employees.  

 
d. Failure to adhere to this policy and allowing secondary employment to 
interfere with an Employee’s District employment may result in discipline up to 
and including termination. The District understands that employees may seek 
outside employment to pursue other interests and gain additional income. The 
District does not seek to discourage employees from engaging in these pursuits 

Commented [BB2]: California law prohibits employers 
from regulaƟng employees off-duty hours, including any 
secondary employment as long as the secondary 
employment does not impact their primary employment.  



 
(REMOVED LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – 

COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS TO 
CONTAIN AS A SEPARATE POLICY) 

Policy No.:   30-4  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Work Schedule 
 

but rightfully and respectfully expects that District employees will devote their full 
energies to their work with the District. Please speak with your General Manager 
if you have any questions about this policy.  

 
Revision: 
Issue No. 01 – 04/08/24, policy previously existed under Policy No. 30-2 – 
Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports; removed “Work Schedules” 
section to create a separate policy.  
 



(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN AS A SEPARATE 

POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-5 
Issue No.:   1  
Effective Date:  04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:    Compensation 
 
Policy No. 30-5 – Compensation 

 
Purpose: To define the Compensation guidelines. 
 
Policy/Procedures: The District recognizes that maintaining a competitive compensation 
system is critical to its goals of delivering high-quality services to its citizens. Therefore, 
the District strives to provide compensation for its employees to attract qualified 
applicants, retain employees, and motivate employees to maintain the highest standards 
of performance.  
 
Compensation: 
1. Compensation Philosophy – as a public entity, the District is committed to rendering 

the highest level of service possible at a fair and reasonable cost. The District's ability 
to achieve this objective is affected by a number of factors, one of which is the quality 
performance of District employees. To attract and retain highly competent employees, 
promote continuous superior performance, and give full recognition to District financial 
constraints, the following criteria will be considered in establishing employee 
compensation: 

 
a. The impact of compensation on the cost of services, financial position of the 

District, and overall operational cost. 
b. Compensation paid for similar work in other similar public and private 

organizations. 
c. The relative worth or value of individual employee's services to the success of the 

District. 
d. The general and specific performance of employees. 
e. Status of the labor force, economic conditions, recruitment and retention, 

experience and other factors influencing the maintenance of a stable and efficient 
work force. 
 

2. Salaries – for new hires, factors considered in establishing the base salary are 
education, previous work experience, position, and other relevant factors. 
 
For existing employees, adjustments to the base salary generally occur as a result of 
a performance evaluation, a promotion, or a significant increase or decrease in job 
responsibilities as well as business circumstances and other relevant factors. 
 
a. A promotion occurs when an employee accepts a position that is a higher-level 

grade. A salary increase is generally given to recognize an increase in job 
responsibilities. A demotion occurs when an employee accepts a job at a lower 
level.  

ATTACHMENT 5



(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN AS A SEPARATE 

POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-5 
Issue No.:   1  
Effective Date:  04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:    Compensation 
 

 
3. Compensation Review and Merit-Based Step Increase – reviews may occur semi-

annually in December and annually in June. The department manager and General 
Manager will evaluate performance based on the outcome of the performance 
evaluation process, the position of the salary within the range, and job responsibilities. 

 
Merit-based step increases, if any, are given based on performance and in 
accordance with current business circumstances of the District. An employee may 
receive their first step increase either (1) during their first agency-wide staff 
evaluations prior to the July 1st start of the new Fiscal Year or (2) at their first six-
month performance evaluation, whichever comes last. No one shall wait longer than 
12 months to be eligible to receive their first step increase. All these factors will 
determine whether a merit-based step increase is awarded. There are no automatic 
pay increases.  
 
Most employees will have the opportunity to receive a merit-based step increase at 
the beginning of the new fiscal year following the June employee evaluation period, 
discussing progress and goals achieved during the previous fiscal year and setting 
new goals and objectives for the coming fiscal year. Merit-based step increases will 
become effective at the beginning of the first full pay period after the start of the new 
fiscal year on July 1st.  
 
Note: any employee on a performance improvement plan may be ineligible for merit 
pay increases, promotion, or Alternative Workweek Schedule.   
 

4. Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) – A twelve step compensation system has been 
established for each position. Agency wide, all steps for active positions may be 
upgraded annually for inflation. The COLA percentage adjustment will be reviewed 
and approved by the Board. Generally, the Board uses the Riverside-San Bernardino-
Ontario region of the Consumer Price Index released by the U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics to determine whether and how high the COLA should be set for each fiscal 
year. It is not required to use that measure and may choose another at its discretion. 
If approved, the COLA adjustment will be effective during the first full pay period in 
January of the following fiscal year.  
 

5. Job Description – job descriptions define essential duties that an employee is required 
to perform in each classification as a condition of continued employment. They are not 
intended to limit the work which may be performed since other tasks may be assigned 
that are similar in nature. 

 



(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN AS A SEPARATE 

POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-5 
Issue No.:   1  
Effective Date:  04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:    Compensation 
 
6. Employee Paycheck – each employee's check stub indicates total gross earnings, net 

earnings, or "take-home pay", deductions, and other important information. The check 
stub should be examined and retained for personal records. Employees are 
encouraged to review their check stubs each pay day.  Paycheck errors must be 
reported immediately, or as soon as practicable to the supervisor and/or Human 
Resources for prompt resolution. 
 
 

6.7. During the course of employment, changes affecting payroll status will likely occur 
from time to time. Examples are changes of dependents and changes required to 
adjust an excessive or insufficient tax withholding situation. Questions concerning 
these changes should be directed to the Administrative Services Manager. 

 
Revision: 
Issue No. 01: 04/08/24, policy previously existed under Policy No. 30-2 – Compensation, Work 
Schedule/Records and Reports; removed compensation related language to create a separate 
policy. 

Commented [AF1]: Recommended by ACWA JPIA 



(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN AS A 

SEPARATE POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-6  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Personnel Records and Access and Reports 
 

Purpose: The District maintains updated personnel documentation including, but 
not limited to, emergency contact information, taxes, insurance, and onboarding. 
These records serve the purpose of supporting the Administrative department in 
record compliance. 
 
Policy/Procedures: The District utilizes this policy as a guide for the maintenance 
and management of employee personnel files.  
 
1. Personnel File – the accuracy of personnel records is essential for the proper 

handling of many items of great importance to employees, including the 
emergency notification of family, income tax deductions, insurance coverage, 
and other fringe benefits from the District. It is the employee's responsibility to 
keep the District updated on personal information so that the District may 
effectively handle those programs and tasks which are for the employee's 
benefit. Realizing the personal nature of the data in the personnel records, the 
District respects the employee's confidentiality and will not disclose this 
information without written approval, or as required by law. An employee may 
request to review their personnel file, in the presence of the Administrative 
Services Manager or the General Manager, by submitting a written request 
twenty-four hours in advance to the General Manager and/or designee. 
 
In order that the District may keep complete and current records, it is mandatory 
that the employee notify the District office immediately whenever there is a 
change in the employee's: 
 
a. Address 
b. Telephone Number 
c. Person to notify in the event of an emergency. 
d. Name, through marriage or otherwise. 
e. Marital status 
f. Number of Dependents 
g. Insurance Beneficiary 
h. Military Status 
i. Driver's License Number and date of expiration when a condition of 

employment. 
j. Proof of automobile insurance, if required. 

 
7. Newly Hired Employees – all new employees who have received a conditional 

job offer must furnish the District office with: 
a. Documentation that establishes identity and employment eligibility (I-9).  
b. Valid Social Security card. 
c. For positions that will operate motor vehicles: 

 A Department of Motor Vehicles report must be provided prior to 
beginning employment. The report must demonstrate a valid driving 

Commented [AF1]: Employers are not permitted to 
specify which documents they will accept from an 
employee, such as a driver’s license and Social Security card. 
Instead we provide them with a list of acceptable 
documents from Form I-9 

ATTACHMENT 6



(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN AS A 

SEPARATE POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-6  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Personnel Records and Access and Reports 
 

status and a good motor vehicle driving record as evidenced by freedom 
from multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents for at least two years 
duration (candidates are responsible for the cost of the report).  

 A valid California driver’s license with picture. 
 In order for an employee to operate their personal vehicle for company 

business the employee will need to provide proof of auto insurance 
demonstrating coverage determined by the district. 

d. Proof of completion of fingerprint services (background check) performed by 
a Live Scan provider supported by the Department of Justice (DOJ). All 
successful candidates that have received a conditional offer of employment 
by the District must be fingerprinted at a Live Scan provider, at the 
employee’s expense (District will reimburse once cleared), and cleared by the 
DOJ prior to beginning employment. No person shall be employed if they 
have been convicted of any sex offense, a controlled substance offense or 
any violent or serious felony. If an applicant’s background check returns with 
a criminal history, the District will conduct an individualized assessment of the 
applicant’s criminal history and its relationship to the specific job duties that 
the applicant will perform. In compliance with the California Fair Chance Act, 
the District will provide written notice to the applicant or employee should the 
District conduct an individualized assessment. The District will consider the 
following factors when making an individualized assessment prior to making 
an adverse employment decision: 
o The specific personal conduct of the applicant that resulted in the 

conviction; 
o Whether the harm was to property or people; 
o The degree of the harm (e.g., amount of loss in theft); 
o The permanence of the harm; 
o The context in which the offense occurred; 
o Whether a disability, including but not limited to a past drug addiction or 

mental impairment, contributed to the offense or conduct, and if so, 
whether the likelihood of harm arising from similar conduct could be 
sufficiently mitigated or eliminated by a reasonable accommodation, or 
whether the disability has been mitigated or eliminated by treatment or 
otherwise; 

o Whether trauma, domestic or dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, 
human trafficking, duress, or other similar factors contributed to the 
offense or conduct; 

o The age of the applicant when the conduct occurred; 
o The amount of time that has passed since the conduct underlying the 

conviction, which may significantly predate the conviction itself; 
o When the conviction led to incarceration, the amount of time that has 

passed since the applicant’s release from incarceration; 
o The specific duties of the job; 



(REMOVED COMPENSATION, WORK SCHEDULE/RECORDS AND REPORTS 
LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING POLICY NO. 30-2 – TO CONTAIN AS A 

SEPARATE POLICY) 
Policy No.:   30-6  
Issue No.:   1 
Effective Date: 04/08/24 (subject to Board approval) 
Subject:  Personnel Records and Access and Reports 
 

o Whether the context in which the conviction occurred is likely to arise in 
the workplace; and/or 

o Whether the type or degree of harm that resulted from the conviction is 
likely to occur in the workplace. 

d. The District will also consider any evidence of an applicant’s or 
employees’ rehabilitation or mitigating circumstances including but not 
limited to the factors above. After conducting the individualized assessment, 
the District may revoke the conditional offer of employment.  

e. Proof of completion of pre-employment physical examination and drug 
screen. Employees must pass complete a physical exam including a 
screening for the use of illegal substances to meet the district’s zero 
tolerance policy and California State Senate Bill 700. 

f. California Fair Political Practices Commission Form 700, if applicable. 
g. IRS Form #W-4. 

 
Revision: 
Issue No. 1 – 04/08/24, policy previously existed under Policy No. 30-2 – 
Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports; removed compensation 
related language to create a separate policy. 
 

Commented [AF2]: Recommended by ACWA JPIA Risk 
Management 

Commented [AF3]: Feedback provided by District labor 
law counsel 

Commented [AF4]: Non DOT positions, can only test for 
impairment, not the presence of marijuana per SB 700 
effective 1/1/24 



Policy No.: 30-2
Issue No.:  5
Effective Date: 07/11/14
Subject:   Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports

Policy No. 30-2 – Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports 

Compensation: 
1. Compensation Policy Philosophy – as a public entity, the District is committed to

rendering the highest level of service possible at a fair and reasonable cost. The
District's ability to achieve this objective is affected by a number of factors, one of
which is the quality performance of District employees. In order toTo attract and retain
highly competent employees, promote continuous superior performance, and give full
recognition to District financial constraints, the following criteria will be considered in
establishing employee compensation:

a. The impact of compensation on the cost of services, financial position of the
District, and overall operational cost. 

b. Compensation paid for similar work in other similar public and private
organizations. 

c. The relative worth or value of individual employee's services to the success of the
District.

d. The general and specific performance of employees.
e. Status of the labor force, economic conditions, recruitment and retention,

experience and other factors influencing the maintenance of a stable and efficient
work force.

2. Salaries – for new hires, factors considered in establishing the base salary are
education, previous work experience, position, and other relevant factors. 

For existing employees, adjustments to the base salary generally occur as a result of 
a performance evaluation, a promotion, or a significant increase or decrease in job 
responsibilities as well as business circumstances and other relevant factors. 

a. A promotion occurs when you accept a position that is a higher-level grade. A
salary increase is generally given to recognize an increase in job responsibilities.
A demotion occurs when you accept a job at a lower level.

3. Compensation Review and Merit Increase – reviews may occur semi-annually in
December and annually in June. The Department Manager and General Manager will 
evaluate the performance based on the outcome of the performance evaluation, the 
position of the salary within the range and job responsibilities. 

Merit increases, if any, are given based on performance and in accordance with 
current business circumstances of the District. Management reserves the right to 
increase an employee’s salary by one (1) or two (2) steps based on the employee’s 
performance evaluation. Any increase beyond one (1) step, but within the adopted 
salary range, must be authorized by the General Manager. An employee must have 

ORIGINAL POLICY - REDLINE COPY

ATTACHMENT 7



Policy No.: 30-2
Issue No.:  5
Effective Date: 07/11/14
Subject:   Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports

worked no less than six (6) months with the Districts to be eligible for a step increase. 
All these factors will determine salary changes within the pay range. There are no 
automatic pay increases.  

Note: any employee on a performance improvement plan may be ineligible for merit 
pay increases, promotion, or Alternative Workweek Schedule.   

4. Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) – Minimum and maximum salary ranges have been
established for each position. These ranges may be reviewed and may be upgraded 
annually for inflation. The COLA percentage adjustment will be reviewed and 
approved by the Board. If approved, the COLA adjustment will be effective during the 
first full pay period in July.  

2.5. Job Description – job descriptions define essential duties that an employee is 
required to perform in each classification as a condition of continued employment. 
They are not intended to limit the work which may be performed since other tasks may 
be assigned that are similar in nature. 

3.6. Employee Paycheck – each employee's check stub indicates total gross earnings, 
net earnings, or "take-home pay", deductions, and other important information. The 
check stub should be examined and retained for personal records. 

4.7. During the course of employment, changes effecting affecting payroll status will 
probably occur from time to time. Examples are changes of dependents and changes 
required to adjust an excessive or insufficient tax withholding situation. Questions 
concerning these changes should be directed to the General ManagerAdministrative 
Services Manager. 

5.8. The District will provide for payroll deduction of the following amounts in addition 
to the normal federal and state tax withholdings and benefit payments required by law: 

a. Amounts necessary to adjust jury duty payments received by employees or similar
payments received by the employee for periods previously compensated by the 
District, upon verification of payment by the court. 

b. Appropriate sums shall be withheld from the pay checks of District employees for:
 Medicare
 OASDI
 CA SDI
 Social Security

6.9. Wage Garnishment – employee wage garnishments created additional work on 
the office staff. Discharge because of multiple garnishments is permitted by law. 
Therefore, the District policy is that wage levies for multiple garnishments shall be 
considered grounds for dismissal. 

Commented [AF1]: This policy now lives as a separate 
policy 30-5 Compensation 



Policy No.: 30-2
Issue No.:  5
Effective Date: 07/11/14
Subject:   Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports

7.10. FLSA Non-exempt Employees – shall be paid at their respective wage rate on the 
basis of timecards turned in. Any timecards not turned in by the day after the end of 
the pay period may be grounds for discipline. Each employee is responsible for 
preparing an individual timecard. This includes workdays, time on sick leave, time off 
due to work-related injury, authorized holidays and vacations. 

a. Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed time and a
half for all work performed in any workday beyond the schedule established by the 
Alternative Work Week agreement, up to 12 hours a day, or for all work performed 
in any week beyond the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week 
agreement for that week. 

b. Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed double the
employee's regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 12 in any workday 
and for all hours worked in excess of eight hours on the seventh consecutive day 
of work in a workweek. 

Work Schedule / Records and Reports: 
1. Work Hours – as a general rule, departments are to be staffed during the District’s

operating hours. 

2. Traditional Work Week – employees working a traditional 40-hour work week
consisting of five eight-hour days. 

1.3. Normal Alternative Work Week – CBWCD has determined through 
communications with its employees that the 9/80 work week would be the Alternative 
Work Week most agreeable to its employees, and therefore to the District. In a 
scheduled two-week, 80-hour pay period, employees who request an alternative work 
week and receive approval for it will work eight nine-hour days and one eight-hour day 
and have one eight-hour work day off every two weeks.an employee will work eight 
nine-hour days and one eight-hour day and have one eight-hour work day off every 
two weeks. It is important to note that the Alternative Work Week schedule is not 
appropriate for all positions, or in all settings, or for all employees, and must be 
preapproved by the department manager and General Manager. 

2.4. Flex Time –  FLSA non-exempt employees cannot request flex time in lieu of being 
paid overtime. flex time for District However, non-exempt eEmployees that work 
overtime during a traditional or alternative work week, may request to leave early on 
a day during the same pay period. Prior written approval from the Department Manger 
and/or General Manager shall be obtained no later than the conclusion of the previous 
work shift. is subject to prior approval of the General Manager.  For FLSA non-exempt 
employees, flex time must be confined to a work week as defined above. For FLSA 
exempt employees shall be permitted the flexibility to adjust their work schedules  it 
should occur within the same pay period.  

Commented [AF2]: This language now lives under 
Policy 30, as its timesheet/payroll related 



Policy No.:   30-2 
Issue No.:   5  
Effective Date: 07/11/14 
Subject:    Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
 
3. Normal Work Day – in a scheduled two week, 80 hour pay period, an employee will 

work eight nine hour days and one eight hour day and have one eight hour work day 
off every two weeks. 
 

4.5. Secondary Employment – employees must notify the District of all secondary 
employment. All employees are prohibited from any secondary employment that 
interferes with their normal job duties or which creates a conflict of interest in regard 
to their primary employment. Interference is not limited to an actual conflict in hours 
of employment or conflict of interest, but also includes the ability of the employee to 
devote his full attention to District responsibilities; to be fit for duty, not to be tired from 
a second job while on duty; and not having to switch hours with other employees for 
the purpose of performing a second job.  

 
Any employee who engages in after or before hours work at a secondary job must 
accomplish the following: 
 
a. Receive the written permission of the General Manager prior to accepting 

secondary employment;  
b. When requested by the General Manager, obtain from the secondary employee a 

waiver of liability for the District from the secondary employer;  
c. It is incumbent on the employee to make it clear to the secondary employer that 

he, the employee, is not performing any duties as a representative of the Chino 
Basin Water Conservation District; and 

d. When engaging in secondary employment, the employee is prohibited from 
wearing any uniform of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District. 

 
5. Meal and Rest Periods – under California labor law a 30-minute unpaid meal break is 

provided to all employees who work more than five hours. An employee has the option 
to waive this lunch period provided that s/he has not worked more than six hours with 
supervisor’s approval.  As such, this waiver does not apply to CBWCD employees 
who will be working regularly scheduled nine- and eight-hour days.  Employees are 
provided with a net 10-minute paid rest period for every four hours worked or major 
fraction thereof. Insofar as is practicable, the rest period should be in the middle of the 
work period.  The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (DLSE) considers 
anything more than two hours to be a “major fraction of four.”  A rest period is not 
required for employees whose total daily work time is less than three and one-half 
hours. The rest period is counted as time worked and therefore, the employer must 
pay for such periods. 

 
6. Personnel File – the accuracy of personnel records is essential for the proper handling 

of many items of great importance to employees, including the emergency notification 
of family, income tax deductions, insurance coverage, and other fringe benefits from 
the District. It is the employee's responsibility to keep the District updated on personal 
information so that the District may effectively handle those programs and tasks which 

Commented [AF3]: All language under Schedule and 
Records and Report are now part of Policy No. 30-4 Work 
Schedules  
 
Language related to work schedules was updated for 
accuracy and consistency purposes to match with 
recently updated policy #30-1 - Overtime. 
 
I also removed repeated language regarding normal work 
day. 

Commented [AF4]: Removed to incorporate as a 
separate policy, Policy No. 30-2 - Meal and Rest Periods. 



Policy No.:   30-2 
Issue No.:   5  
Effective Date: 07/11/14 
Subject:    Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
 

are for the employee's benefit. Realizing the personal nature of the data in the 
personnel records, the District respects the employee's confidentiality and will not 
disclose this information without written approval, or as required by law. An employee 
may request to review his personnel file by submitting a written request twenty-four 
hours in advance to the General Manager. 
 
In order that the District may keep complete and current records, it is mandatory that 
the employee notify the District office immediately whenever there is a change in the 
employee's: 
 
a. Address 
b. Telephone Number 
c. Person to notify in the event of an emergency. 
d. Name, through marriage or otherwise. 
e. Marital status 
f. Number of Dependents 
g. Insurance Beneficiary 
h. Military Status 
i. Driver's License Number and date of expiration when a condition of employment. 
j. Proof of automobile insurance, if required. 

 
7. Newly Hired Employees – all new employees who have received a conditional job 

offer must furnish the District office with: 
a. Documentation that establishes identity and employment eligibility (I-9).  
b. Valid Social Security card. 
c. For positions that will operate motor vehicles: 

 A Department of Motor Vehicles report must be provided prior to beginning 
employment. The report must demonstrateing a valid driving status and a good 
motor vehicle driving record as evidenced by freedom from multiple or serious 
traffic violations or accidents for at least two years duration (candidates are 
responsible for the cost of the report).  

 A valid California driver’s license with picture. 
 In order for an employee to operate their personal vehicle for company 

business the employee will need to provide proof of auto insurance 
demonstrating coverage determined by the district. 

d. Proof of Results of completion of fingerprint services research performed by a 
Live Scan provider supported by the Department of Justice (DOJ). local police 
department. All successful candidates that have received a conditional offer of 
employment by the District new to the district must be fingerprinted at a Live Scan 
provider, at the employee’s expense (District will reimburse once cleared),  and 
cleared by the Department of Justice DOJ prior to beginning employment. No 
person shall be employed if they have been convicted of any sex offense, a 
controlled substance offense or any violent or serious felony.  



Policy No.: 30-2
Issue No.:  5
Effective Date: 07/11/14
Subject:   Compensation, Work Schedule/Records and Reports

e. Proof of completion Results of pre-employment physical examination and drug
screen. Employees must pass a physical exam including a screening for the use
of illegal substances to meet the district’s zero tolerance policy.

f. California Fair Political Practices Commission Form 700, if applicable.
g. IRS Form #W-4.

Revision: 
Issue No. 01: 03/12/97, Original policy. 
Issue No. 02: 03/08/00, Establish Overtime Guidelines. 
Issue No. 03: 03/09/09, Alternative Work Week Written Disclosure. 
Issue No. 04: 07/11/14, Meal and Rest Period DLSE Clarification. 

Commented [AF5]: Now lives as  a separate policy 30-6 



Policy No.: 30-2
Issue No.:  4
Effective Date:  07/11/14
Subject:   Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports

Policy No. 30-2 – Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 

Compensation 
1. "Compensation Policy". As a public entity, the District is committed to rendering the

highest level of service possible at a fair and reasonable cost. The District's ability to
achieve this objective is affected by a number of factors, one of which is the quality
performance of District employees. In order to attract and retain highly competent
employees, promote continuous superior performance, and give full recognition to
District financial constraints, the following criteria will be considered in establishing
employee compensation:

A. The impact of compensation on the cost of services, financial position of the
District, and overall operational cost.

B. Compensation paid for similar work in other similar public and private
organizations.

C. The relative worth or value of individual employee's services to the success of the
District.

D. The general and specific performance of employees.
E. Status of the labor force, economic conditions, recruitment and retention,

experience and other factors influencing the maintenance of a stable and efficient
work force.

2. "Job Description". Job descriptions define essential duties than an employee is
required to perform in each classification as a condition of continued employment.
They are not intended to limit the work which may be performed since other tasks may
be assigned that are similar in nature.

3. "Employee Paycheck". Each employee's check stub indicates total gross earnings,
net earnings, or "take-home pay", deductions, and other important information. The
check stub should be examined and retained for personal records.

During the course of employment, changes effecting payroll status will probably occur
from time to time. Examples are changes of dependents and changes required to
adjust an excessive or insufficient tax withholding situation. Questions concerning
these changes should be directed to the General Manager.

The District will provide for payroll deduction of the following amounts in addition to
the normal federal and state tax withholdings and benefit payments required by law:

A. Amounts necessary to adjust jury duty payments received by employees or similar
payments received by the employee for periods previously compensated by the
District, upon verification of payment by the court.

B. Appropriate sums shall be withheld from the pay checks of District employees for:
1. Medicare

ORIGINAL POLICY



Policy No.:   30-2 
Issue No.:   4 
Effective Date:   07/11/14 
Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
 

2.  OASDI 
3. CA SDI 
4. Social Security 

 
4. "Wage Garnishment". Employee wage garnishments created additional work on the 

office staff. Discharge because of multiple garnishments is permitted by law. 
Therefore, the District policy is that wage levies for multiple garnishments shall be 
considered grounds for dismissal. 

  
5. "FLSA Non-exempt Employees" shall be paid at their respective wage rate on the 

basis of timecards turned in. Any timecards not turned in by the day after the end of 
the pay period may be grounds for discipline. Each employee is responsible for 
preparing an individual timecard. This includes workdays, time on sick leave, time off 
due to work-related injury, authorized holidays and vacations. 

 
A. Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed time and a 

half for all work performed in any workday beyond the schedule established by the 
Alternative Work Week agreement, up to 12 hours a day, or for all work performed 
in any week beyond the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week 
agreement for that week.  

B.  Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed double the 
employee's regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 12 in any workday 
and for all hours worked in excess of eight hours on the seventh consecutive day 
of work in a workweek. 

 
Work Schedule / Records and Reports 
1. "Normal Work Week”.  CBWCD has determined through communications with its 

employees that the 9/80 work week would be the Alternative Work Week most 
agreeable to its employees, and therefore to the District.  In a scheduled two week, 
80 hour pay period, an employee will work eight nine hour days and one eight hour 
day and have one eight hour work day off every two weeks. 

 
2. "Flex Time". Flex time for District Employees is subject to prior approval of the General 

Manager.  For FLSA non-exempt employees, flex time must be confined to a work 
week as defined above. For FLSA exempt employees it should occur within the pay 
period. Prior written approval from the General Manager shall be obtained no later 
than the conclusion of the previous work shift. 

 
3. “Normal Work Day”. In a scheduled two week, 80 hour pay period, an employee will 

work eight nine hour days and one eight hour day and have one eight hour work day 
off every two weeks. 

 
4. "Secondary Employment". Employees must notify the District of all secondary 

employment. All employees are prohibited from any secondary employment that 



Policy No.:   30-2 
Issue No.:   4 
Effective Date:   07/11/14 
Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
 

interferes with their normal job duties or which creates a conflict of interest in regard 
to their primary employment. Interference is not limited to an actual conflict in hours 
of employment or conflict of interest, but also includes the ability of the employee to 
devote his full attention to District responsibilities; to be fit for duty, not to be tired from 
a second job while on duty; and not having to switch hours with other employees for 
the purpose of performing a second job.  

 
Any employee who engages in after or before hours work at a secondary job must 
accomplish the following: 
 
A. Receive the written permission of the General Manager prior to accepting 

secondary employment;  
B. When requested by the General Manager, obtain from the secondary employee a 

waiver of liability for the District from the secondary employer;  
C. It is incumbent on the employee to make it clear to the secondary employer that 

he, the employee, is not performing any duties as a representative of the Chino 
Basin Water Conservation District; and 

D. When engaging in secondary employment, the employee is prohibited from 
wearing any uniform of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District. 

 
5. "Meal and Rest Periods". Under California labor law a 30 minute unpaid meal break 

is provided to all employees who work more than five hours. An employee has the 
option to waive this lunch period provided that s/he has not worked more than six 
hours with supervisor approval.  As such, this waiver does not apply to CBWCD 
employees who will be working regularly scheduled nine and eight hour days.  
Employees are provided with a net 10-minute paid rest period for every four hours 
worked or major fraction thereof. Insofar as is practicable, the rest period should be in 
the middle of the work period.   The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (DLSE) 
considers anything more than two hours to be a “major fraction of four.”  A rest period 
is not required for employees whose total daily work time is less than three and one-
half hours.  The rest period is counted as time worked and therefore, the employer 
must pay for such periods. 

 
6. "Personnel File". The accuracy of personnel records is essential for the proper handling 

of many items of great importance to employees, including the emergency notification 
of family, income tax deductions, insurance coverage, and other fringe benefits from 
the District. It is the employee's responsibility to keep the District updated on personal 
information so that the District may effectively handle those programs and tasks which 
are for the employee's benefit. Realizing the personal nature of the data in the 
personnel records, the District respects the employee's confidentiality and will not 
disclose this information without written approval, or as required by law. An employee 
may request to review his personnel file by submitting a written request twenty-four 
hours in advance to the General Manager. 
 



Policy No.:   30-2 
Issue No.:   4 
Effective Date:   07/11/14 
Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
 

In order that the District may keep complete and current records, it is mandatory that 
the employee notify the District office immediately whenever there is a change in the 
employee's: 
 
A. Address 
B. Telephone Number 
C. Person to notify in the event of an emergency. 
D. Name, through marriage or otherwise. 
E. Marital status 
F. Number of Dependents 
G. Insurance Beneficiary 
H. Military Status 
I. Driver's License Number and date of expiration when a condition of employment. 
J. Proof of automobile insurance, if required. 

 
7. “Newly Hired Employees”.  All new employees must furnish the District office with: 

 Documentation that establishes identity and employment eligibility (I9)  
 Valid Social Security card 
 For positions that will operate motor vehicles: 

o A Department of Motor Vehicles report demonstrating valid driving status and 
a good motor vehicle driving record as evidenced by freedom from multiple or 
serious traffic violations or accidents for at least two years duration. 

o A valid California driver’s license with picture. 
o In order for an employee to operate their personal vehicle for company 

business the employee will need to provide proof of auto insurance 
demonstrating coverage determined by the district. 

 Results of fingerprint research performed by local police department. All successful 
candidates new to the district must be fingerprinted at the employee’s expense 
and cleared by the Department of Justice prior to beginning employment. No 
person shall be employed if they have been convicted of any sex offense, a 
controlled substance offense or any violent or serious felony. 

 Results of pre-employment physical examination and drug screen.  Employee 
must pass a physical exam including a screening for the use of illegal substances 
to meet the district’s zero tolerance policy. 

 California Fair Political Practices Commission Form 700, if applicable 
 IRS Form #W4 

 
 
Revision: 
Issue No. 01: 03/12/97, Original policy. 
Issue No. 02: 03/08/00, Establish Overtime Guidelines. 
Issue No. 03: 03/09/09, Alternative Work Week Written Disclosure. 
Issue No. 04: 07/11/14, Meal and Rest Period DLSE Clarification. 



Policy No.:   38         
Issue No.:   56 
Effective Date:  06/12/2304/08/23 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject:    Vacation Pay 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page | 1 
 

 
Policy No. 38 – Vacation Pay 
 
Purpose:  Vacation time provides employees with paid time off for their personal use 
 
Policy/Procedure:  To establish clear guidelines and procedures regarding the 
allocation, scheduling, and usage of vacation time for employees. 
 
1. Eligibility – full-time employees: See chart above. are eligible for vacation time.   
2.1. Part-time employees are not eligible for vacation time. 

 
2. Accrual – full-time employees earn vacation time according to the following schedule: 
 

Months of Service Per Paycheck Accrual Annual Accrual 
0-36 months 3.69 hours 96 hours 
37-60 months 4.62 hours 120 hours 
61-72 months 4.92 hours 128 hours 
73-96 months 5.23 hours 136 hours 
97-108 months 5.54 hours 144 hours 
109-120 months 5.85 hours 152 hours 

121+ months 6.15 hours 160 hours 
 

General Manager:  The General Manager’s vacation accrual is determined by the 
General Manager’s contract. 

 
 

a. Employees are eligible to use accrued vacation time after completing six (6) 
months of continuous employment. However, full-time employees on a 
management-approved 9-80 schedule may use one hour of vacation time during 
District paid holidays within their first six months of service to be paid for the 9th 
hour of the day and receive one fully paid day off during the District holiday. 

a.  
 

b. Vacation hours shall be accrued on a pro rata basis calculated with each pay 
period. 
 

c. While part-time employees are not eligible for vacation, if they were employed with 
the District full- time and transitioned to part-time employment, they may keep and 
use any vacation time accrued during their tenure as a full-time employee. 
 

d. Part-time employees that transition to full- time employment can count time served 
with the District toward the District’s vacation accrual chart as follows: all hours 

ATTACHMENT 8



Policy No.:   38         
Issue No.:   56 
Effective Date:  06/12/2304/08/23 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject:    Vacation Pay 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page | 2 
 

worked as throughout the part-time employee’s tenure with the District will be 
divided by 2,080, or the number of full-time working hours in a year. The formula 
is as follows (total hours worked as a part- time employee of the District/2,080 = 
years of service for vacation accrual). For example, if an employee worked 20 
hours per week for three years, they will have accrued one and a half years, or 18 
months, of service. The District’s Administrative Services Department will follow 
that formula to determine the number of months of service based on that 
calculation and the General Manager will review and sign off on the determination.   

 
 

3. Vacation Requests – when considering reviewing vacation requests, the General 
Manager may schedule vacations as necessary needed to minimize the effect of the 
vacation schedule their impact on District operations. Vacation requests must be 
submitted in writing on a formelectronically through the District’s timekeeping system 
approved by the General at least 7 days in advance and/or as soon as possible, to be 
considered for approval. Dates should be approved by the Department Ma manager 
and secured in the electronic timekeeping system prior to any purchases of flights, 
hotels, or other rentals. 

3.  
 

4. Unused Vacation Time – employees are encouraged to use their vacation time every 
year. However, an employee may carry forward vacation earned but not used up to a 
maximum of 2400 hours. Employees will not accrue additional vacation time until the 
total accrued hours isare reduced below 2400 hours.  

4.  
 

5. Vacation Usage Tracking – the General Manager is responsible for seeing that all  
vacation time used by employees is reported. The District will maintain accurate 
records of vacation accrual, usage, and balances for all employees. 

5.  
 

6. Separation of Employment – upon termination separation of employment after 
completion of the Introductory Employment period per Policy No. 29 and continuous 
employment during that time, an eligible the employee is will be paid for vacation all 
accrued but unused vacation time  through the date of termination, computed at the 
employee’s straight time then in effect. 

6.  
 

7. Payout of Vacation – annually, an employee may request for the District to pay out no 
more than 80 hours of the employee’s annual accrual amount at the current rate of 
pay, provided the employee maintains a balance of no less than 50% of their annual 
earned accrual amount. All requests must be submitted in the month of November to 

Commented [AF1]: This language was not revised, but 
simply moved under “Accruals” section. 



Policy No.:   38         
Issue No.:   56 
Effective Date:  06/12/2304/08/23 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject:    Vacation Pay 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page | 3 
 

be paid no later than the last payroll run in the Month of December. Please review the 
examples below: 
a. Example 1: An employee with 0-36 months of service that has accrued 124 hours 

of vacation time, may only request a payout for a maximum of 48 hours to maintain 
their accrual balance no less than 50% (96 hrs. annual accrual/2=48 hours are 
50% of the employee’s annual earned accrual amount). 
 

b. Example 2: An employee with 61-72 months of service that has accrued up to 140 
hours of vacation time, may only request a payout for a maximum of 76 hours to 
maintain their accrual balance to no less than 64 hours (128 hrs. annual 
accrual/2=64 hours are 50% of the employee’s annual earned accrual amount). 
 

c. Example 3: An employee with 121+ months of service that has accrued up to 200 
hours of vacation time, may only request a payout for a maximum of 80 hours (160 
hrs. annual accrual/2=80 hours are 50% of the employee's annual earned accrual 
amount). 

 
7. Vacation hours shall be accrued on a pro rata basis calculated with each pay 
period. 

8. While part-time employees are not eligible for vacation, if they were employed with the 
District full time and transitioned to part-time employment, they may keep and use any 
vacation time accrued during their tenure as a full-time employee. 
 

1. Part-time employees that transition to full time employment can count time served with 
the District toward the District’s vacation accrual chart as follows: all hours worked as 
throughout the part-time employee’s tenure with the District will be divided by 2,080, 
or the number of full-time working hours in a year. The formula is as follows (total 
hours worked as a part time employee of the District/2,080 = years of service for 
vacation accrual). For example, if an employee worked 20 hours per week for three 
years, they will have accrued one and a half years, or 18 months, of service. The 
District’s Administrative Services Department will follow that formula to determine the 
number of months of service based on that calculation and the General Manager will 
review and sign off on the determination.   

    
Revision: 
Issue No. 01: 01/10/96, original policy. 
Issue No. 02: 08/08/16, conforming changes with Policy No. 29 Introductory 
Employment; clarifying changes. 
Issue No. 03: 04/13/20, change to #1, length of time before use of accrued vacation. 
Issue No. 04: 02/12/23, retroactively applied to 01-01-2022 – years of service listed as 
months to eliminate confusion as to when vacation hour accruals should change. 
Issue No. 05: 06/12/23, vacation accrual chart updated and items #7 and #8 added. 

Commented [AF2]: This was KEPT and MOVED 
under Section 1. “Accruals” 

Commented [AF3]: This was KEPT and MOVED 
under Section 1. “Accruals” 

Commented [AF4]: This was KEPT and MOVED 
under Section 1. “Accruals” 



Policy No.:   38         
Issue No.:   56 
Effective Date:  06/12/2304/08/23 (Pending Board Approval) 
Subject:    Vacation Pay 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page | 4 
 

Issue No. 06: 04/08/24, included request procedures, updated the accruals and 
tracking, clarify separation of employment language, and add payout of vacation option. 



Policy No.:   39 
Issue No.:   56 
Effective Date:  09/11/23 
Subject:    Holiday Pays 
 
Policy No. 39 – Holiday Pays 
 
Purpose: To provide eligible employees with holiday time off with pay. 
 
Policy/Procedure: 
1. Eligibility – employees who are classified as regular, full-time employees are eligible 

to receive holiday pay. Employees who are classified as part-time employees are 
eligible to receive holiday pay if their regularly scheduled workday falls upon the day 
that the District observed holiday is scheduled each year. Employees classified as 
temporary employees are not eligible to receive holiday pay. 
 

1.2.Paid Holidays - the District pays regular, full-time employees for fourteen holidays per 
year: 
• New Year’s Day 
• Martin Luther King Day 
• President’s Day 
• Memorial Day 
• Independence Day 
• Labor Day 
• Veteran’s Day  
• Thanksgiving Day 
• Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas Eve  
• Christmas Day 
• New Year’s Eve  
• Two Floating Holidays (8 hours each day) 

 
The following conditions apply to the District’s holiday pay policy: 
 
For the purpose of this policy, a District-observed holiday is defined as a day off of 
regularly scheduled work with 8 hours of pay.  

 
2.3.If the District-observed holiday falls on Saturday, employees will have the preceding 

Friday off. If the District-observed holiday falls on Sunday, employees will have the 
following Monday off. 

 
3.4.If a District-observed holiday falls on an employee’s 9/80 Alternative Work Week 

scheduled day off, the employee will accrue eight hours of holiday pay. The employee 
shall coordinate with their manager to schedule that accrued holiday pay to be used 
within the same pay period when the District-observed holiday occurred. In limited 
circumstances and per management’s discretion, the accrued holiday pay may be 
used in the subsequent pay period or later, but only in exceptional circumstances.  

 
4.5.If a District-observed holiday falls on the employee’s eight-hour workday, the 

employee will be credited with eight hours of holiday pay.  
 

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Top:  0.75", Bottom:  0.31", Header distance
from edge:  0.31", Footer distance from edge:  0.13"

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Line spacing:  single, 
No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

ATTACHMENT 9



Policy No.:   39 
Issue No.:   56 
Effective Date:  09/11/23 
Subject:    Holiday Pays 
 
5.6.If a District-observed holiday falls on a 9/80 employee’s nine-hour workday, the 

employee may elect to use one hour of accrued vacation leave to supplement the 
eight-hour holiday pay.  

 
6.7.At the start of each year, the District designates 12 days as District-observed holidays 

and posts a list of those days.  
 
7.8.Part-time employees will receive holiday pay if their regularly scheduled workday falls 

upon the day that a District-observed holiday is scheduled each year. The intention of 
this policy is that eligible part-time employees receive a District-observed holiday day 
off with pay as their full-time colleagues do so that they do not lose income while the 
District is closed for a District-observed holiday. Accordingly, eligible part-time 
employees will receive holiday pay for the number of hours they are normally 
scheduled to work on that day of the week that the District-observed holiday falls. If a 
District-observed holiday falls on a day that a part-time employee does not work, that 
part-time employee will not receive holiday pay.  

 
9. Floating Holidays – starting January 1, 2024, all eligible full-time employees will be 

entitled to two paid days off per year to be used only for employee/relative birthdays, 
work anniversary, religious or cultural reasons/events/holidays, or observance of, or 
other state or federal holiday during which the District remains open, or in connection 
with holidays that the District offers (for example, extending a holiday weekend)at the 
employee’s discretion, subject to management approval. Part-time employees are not 
eligible to receive floating holidays. No later than January 1 each year or as soon as 
practicable, each employee must submit the dates they desire to use their two floating 
holidays that year to the General Manager for approval. The week between Christmas 
and the New Years is a popular time, and approval for holidays and vacations during 
that time will prioritize keeping minimal staffing on campus to allow it to be open to the 
public. The General Manager has final approval on the scheduling of floating holidays. 
Submission of a desired date does not guarantee its approval, and staff may be asked 
to submit a second or third choice based on availability. 

 
a. A new employee hired before the end of the first half of the calendar year will 

receive two floating holidays upon hire; a new employee hired during the second 
half of the calendar year will receive one floating holiday upon hire.  

b. Floating holidays may not be carried over to the next calendar year and will expire 
if not used, nor can they be cashed out if not taken or paid upon separation of 
employment.  
8.  

 
 

Revision:  
Issue No. 01: 01/10/96, Original policy. 
Issue No. 02: 01/12/00 
Issue No. 03: 03/09/09 
Issue No. 04: 01/10/10 
Issue No. 05: 09/11/23, adding two floating holidays, updated items no.’s 3 and 5, and adding 
items no.’s. 7 and 8. 
 
Issue No. 06: 04/08/24, updated to clarify floating holiday eligibility and conditions. 

Formatted: Font color: Text 1, Ligatures: Standard +
Contextual

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font color: Text 1, Ligatures: Standard +
Contextual

Formatted: Font color: Text 1, Ligatures: Standard +
Contextual

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Line spacing:  single,  No
bullets or numbering

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Line spacing:  single,
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … +
Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0" + Indent
at:  0.25"

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  At least 12
pt



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*** PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK *** 



  ITEM NO. 8 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2024 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager  
   
SUBJECT: APPROVE THE RETROACTIVE PAY TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II 

POSITION FOR DUTIES PERFORMED OUTSIDE OF CLASSIFICATION  
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Committee:  

 
1. Review, discuss, and approve the retroactive pay “Option A” for the Administrative 

Assistant II position for duties performed outside of classification, effective April 8, 2024, 
as recommended by the Personnel Committee. 

 
BACKGROUND  
 
On March 11, 2024, the Board of Directors reviewed and approved the salary labor grades and 
job descriptions for the Administrative Assistant I, Administrative Assistant II, and newly 
proposed Administrative Analyst positions. It was recommended that the staff provide a 
breakdown of the calculated methodology for the suggested retroactive pay for the 
Administrative Assistant II position, considering the different periods during which the position 
worked out of classification. 
 
During the discussion, the Board of Directors inquired about the calculation of retroactive pay, 
particularly concerning the timeframe affected by the closure of District facilities due to COVID-
19, spanning from 2020 to the District's reopening to the public in January 2022. The original 
calculation included duties performed from 2020 through 2024. 
 
It was noted that during the closure period, specific duties typically assigned to the 
Administrative Assistant II position were temporarily paused and the responsibilities of the 
Bookkeeper position filled the place of those paused duties. Despite the pause of typical duties 
in the Administrative Assistant II position and the Bookkeeper position being a lower 
classification, the employee continued to undertake tasks outside their usual job scope. 
However, the Board of Directors suggested a review of the calculation, focusing on the period 
from 2022 to 2024, during which the Administrative Assistant II would have resumed full 
responsibilities of both positions. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

 
On March 27, 2024, the Personnel Commitee met to discuss the retroac�ve pay op�ons and 
recommended that the Board move forward with Op�on A, to include interest.  
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
Staff requested that the District’s financial consultant, Eide Bailley LLP, compute the retroactive 
pay from January 2022 to March 10, 2024, and provided an option with and without interest as 
shown below: 
 

Option A: Retroactive Pay with 
Interest 

Option B: Retroactive Pay without 
Interest 

$14,949.90 $14,854.47 
 
Options A and B include the following rates based on step increases and cost of living adjustments (COLA) 
in effect and applied to actual paid hours (regular, holiday, vacation, overtime, etc.) during each period. 
 
Class 132  
Step 5:  1/1/22   $32.39/hr  
Step 6:  7/1/22   $33.20/hr   (2.5% step increase)  
Step 6:  1/1/23   $34.88/hr   (5% COLA) 
Step 7:  7/1/23   $35.75/hr   (2.5% step increase) 
Step 7:  1/1/24   $37.56/hr   (5% COLA) 
 
Option A includes interest at the following rates (averages from historical credit union savings 
account rates): 
 

• .025% for 1/1/22 – 12/31/22  
• .050% for 1/1/23 – 12/31/23  
• 1.00% for 1/1/24 – 3/10/24  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
If the Board considers Option A in retroactive pay, the fiscal impact would be $14,950. 
 
If the Board considers Option B in retroactive pay, the fiscal impact would be $14,855. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1: 12-Step Salary Schedule 



C
H

IN
O

 B
A

SI
N

 W
A

TE
R

 C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

- A
D

O
PT

ED
 1

2-
ST

EP
 S

A
LA

R
Y 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 J
A

N
U

A
R

Y 
1,

 2
02

4

St
ep

 1
St

ep
 2

St
ep

 3
St

ep
 4

St
ep

 5
St

ep
 6

St
ep

 7
St

ep
 8

St
ep

 9
St

ep
 1

0
St

ep
 1

1
St

ep
 1

2
St

ep
 1

St
ep

 2
St

ep
 3

St
ep

 4
St

ep
 5

St
ep

 6
St

ep
 7

St
ep

 8
St

ep
 9

St
ep

 1
0

St
ep

 1
1

St
ep

 1
2

10
1

3
1

,3
3

6
   

   
3

2
,1

2
0

   
   

3
2

,9
2

3
   

   
3

3
,7

4
6

   
   

3
4

,5
9

0
   

   
3

5
,4

5
4

   
   

3
6

,3
4

1
   

   
3

7
,2

4
9

   
   

3
8

,1
8

0
   

   
3

9
,1

3
5

   
   

4
0

,1
1

3
   

   
41

,1
16

   
  

1
5

.0
7

   
  

1
5

.4
4

   
  

1
5

.8
3

   
  

1
6

.2
2

   
  

1
6

.6
3

   
  

1
7

.0
5

   
  

1
7

.4
7

   
  

1
7

.9
1

   
  

1
8

.3
6

   
  

1
8

.8
1

   
  

1
9

.2
9

   
  

1
9

.7
7

   
  

10
1

10
2

3
2

,1
2

0
   

   
3

2
,9

2
3

   
   

3
3

,7
4

6
   

   
3

4
,5

9
0

   
   

3
5

,4
5

4
   

   
3

6
,3

4
1

   
   

3
7

,2
4

9
   

   
3

8
,1

8
0

   
   

3
9

,1
3

5
   

   
4

0
,1

1
3

   
   

4
1

,1
1

6
   

   
4

2
,1

4
4

   
   

1
5

.4
4

   
  

1
5

.8
3

   
  

1
6

.2
2

   
  

1
6

.6
3

   
  

1
7

.0
5

   
  

1
7

.4
7

   
  

1
7

.9
1

   
  

1
8

.3
6

   
  

1
8

.8
1

   
  

1
9

.2
9

   
  

1
9

.7
7

   
  

2
0

.2
6

   
  

10
2

10
3

3
2

,9
2

3
   

   
3

3
,7

4
6

   
   

3
4

,5
9

0
   

   
3

5
,4

5
4

   
   

3
6

,3
4

1
   

   
3

7
,2

4
9

   
   

3
8

,1
8

0
   

   
3

9
,1

3
5

   
   

4
0

,1
1

3
   

   
4

1
,1

1
6

   
   

4
2

,1
4

4
   

   
4

3
,1

9
8

   
   

1
5

.8
3

   
  

1
6

.2
2

   
  

1
6

.6
3

   
  

1
7

.0
5

   
  

1
7

.4
7

   
  

1
7

.9
1

   
  

1
8

.3
6

   
  

1
8

.8
1

   
  

1
9

.2
9

   
  

1
9

.7
7

   
  

2
0

.2
6

   
  

2
0

.7
7

   
  

10
3

10
4

3
3

,7
4

6
   

   
3

4
,5

9
0

   
   

3
5

,4
5

4
   

   
3

6
,3

4
1

   
   

3
7

,2
4

9
   

   
3

8
,1

8
0

   
   

3
9

,1
3

5
   

   
4

0
,1

1
3

   
   

4
1

,1
1

6
   

   
4

2
,1

4
4

   
   

4
3

,1
9

8
   

   
4

4
,2

7
8

   
   

1
6

.2
2

   
  

1
6

.6
3

   
  

1
7

.0
5

   
  

1
7

.4
7

   
  

1
7

.9
1

   
  

1
8

.3
6

   
  

1
8

.8
1

   
  

1
9

.2
9

   
  

1
9

.7
7

   
  

2
0

.2
6

   
  

2
0

.7
7

   
  

2
1

.2
9

   
  

10
4

10
5

3
4

,5
9

0
   

   
3

5
,4

5
4

   
   

3
6

,3
4

1
   

   
3

7
,2

4
9

   
   

3
8

,1
8

0
   

   
3

9
,1

3
5

   
   

4
0

,1
1

3
   

   
4

1
,1

1
6

   
   

4
2

,1
4

4
   

   
4

3
,1

9
8

   
   

4
4

,2
7

8
   

   
4

5
,3

8
5

   
   

1
6

.6
3

   
  

1
7

.0
5

   
  

1
7

.4
7

   
  

1
7

.9
1

   
  

1
8

.3
6

   
  

1
8

.8
1

   
  

1
9

.2
9

   
  

1
9

.7
7

   
  

2
0

.2
6

   
  

2
0

.7
7

   
  

2
1

.2
9

   
  

2
1

.8
2

   
  

10
5

10
6

3
5

,4
5

4
   

   
3

6
,3

4
1

   
   

3
7

,2
4

9
   

   
3

8
,1

8
0

   
   

3
9

,1
3

5
   

   
4

0
,1

1
3

   
   

4
1

,1
1

6
   

   
4

2
,1

4
4

   
   

4
3

,1
9

8
   

   
4

4
,2

7
8

   
   

4
5

,3
8

5
   

   
4

6
,5

1
9

   
   

1
7

.0
6

   
  

1
7

.4
7

   
  

1
7

.9
1

   
  

1
8

.3
6

   
  

1
8

.8
1

   
  

1
9

.2
9

   
  

1
9

.7
7

   
  

2
0

.2
6

   
  

2
0

.7
7

   
  

2
1

.2
9

   
  

2
1

.8
2

   
  

22
.3

7
   

  
10

6
10

7
3

6
,3

4
1

   
   

3
7

,2
4

9
   

   
3

8
,1

8
0

   
   

3
9

,1
3

5
   

   
4

0
,1

1
3

   
   

4
1

,1
1

6
   

   
4

2
,1

4
4

   
   

4
3

,1
9

8
   

   
4

4
,2

7
8

   
   

4
5

,3
8

5
   

   
4

6
,5

1
9

   
   

4
7

,6
8

2
   

   
1

7
.4

7
   

  
1

7
.9

1
   

  
1

8
.3

6
   

  
1

8
.8

1
   

  
1

9
.2

9
   

  
1

9
.7

7
   

  
2

0
.2

6
   

  
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
10

7
10

8
3

7
,2

4
9

   
   

3
8

,1
8

0
   

   
3

9
,1

3
5

   
   

4
0

,1
1

3
   

   
4

1
,1

1
6

   
   

4
2

,1
4

4
   

   
4

3
,1

9
8

   
   

4
4

,2
7

8
   

   
4

5
,3

8
5

   
   

4
6

,5
1

9
   

   
4

7
,6

8
2

   
   

4
8

,8
7

4
   

   
1

7
.9

1
   

  
1

8
.3

6
   

  
1

8
.8

1
   

  
1

9
.2

9
   

  
1

9
.7

7
   

  
2

0
.2

6
   

  
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
10

8
10

9
3

8
,1

8
0

   
   

3
9

,1
3

5
   

   
4

0
,1

1
3

   
   

4
1

,1
1

6
   

   
4

2
,1

4
4

   
   

4
3

,1
9

8
   

   
4

4
,2

7
8

   
   

4
5

,3
8

5
   

   
4

6
,5

1
9

   
   

4
7

,6
8

2
   

   
4

8
,8

7
4

   
   

5
0

,0
9

6
   

   
1

8
.3

6
   

  
1

8
.8

1
   

  
1

9
.2

9
   

  
1

9
.7

7
   

  
2

0
.2

6
   

  
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
10

9
11

0
3

9
,1

3
5

   
   

4
0

,1
1

3
   

   
4

1
,1

1
6

   
   

4
2

,1
4

4
   

   
4

3
,1

9
8

   
   

4
4

,2
7

8
   

   
4

5
,3

8
5

   
   

4
6

,5
1

9
   

   
4

7
,6

8
2

   
   

4
8

,8
7

4
   

   
5

0
,0

9
6

   
   

5
1

,3
4

8
   

   
1

8
.8

1
   

  
1

9
.2

9
   

  
1

9
.7

7
   

  
2

0
.2

6
   

  
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
11

0
11

1
4

0
,1

1
3

   
   

4
1

,1
1

6
   

   
4

2
,1

4
4

   
   

4
3

,1
9

8
   

   
4

4
,2

7
8

   
   

4
5

,3
8

5
   

   
4

6
,5

1
9

   
   

4
7

,6
8

2
   

   
4

8
,8

7
4

   
   

5
0

,0
9

6
   

   
5

1
,3

4
8

   
   

5
2

,6
3

2
   

   
1

9
.2

9
   

  
1

9
.7

7
   

  
2

0
.2

6
   

  
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
11

1
11

2
4

1
,1

1
6

   
   

4
2

,1
4

4
   

   
4

3
,1

9
8

   
   

4
4

,2
7

8
   

   
4

5
,3

8
5

   
   

4
6

,5
1

9
   

   
4

7
,6

8
2

   
   

4
8

,8
7

4
   

   
5

0
,0

9
6

   
   

5
1

,3
4

8
   

   
5

2
,6

3
2

   
   

5
3

,9
4

8
   

   
1

9
.7

7
   

  
2

0
.2

6
   

  
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
11

2
11

3
4

2
,1

4
4

   
   

4
3

,1
9

8
   

   
4

4
,2

7
8

   
   

4
5

,3
8

5
   

   
4

6
,5

1
9

   
   

4
7

,6
8

2
   

   
4

8
,8

7
4

   
   

5
0

,0
9

6
   

   
5

1
,3

4
8

   
   

5
2

,6
3

2
   

   
5

3
,9

4
8

   
   

5
5

,2
9

7
   

   
2

0
.2

6
   

  
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
11

3
11

4
4

3
,1

9
8

   
   

4
4

,2
7

8
   

   
4

5
,3

8
5

   
   

4
6

,5
1

9
   

   
4

7
,6

8
2

   
   

4
8

,8
7

4
   

   
5

0
,0

9
6

   
   

5
1

,3
4

8
   

   
5

2
,6

3
2

   
   

5
3

,9
4

8
   

   
5

5
,2

9
7

   
   

5
6

,6
7

9
   

   
2

0
.7

7
   

  
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
11

4
11

5
4

4
,2

7
8

   
   

4
5

,3
8

5
   

   
4

6
,5

1
9

   
   

4
7

,6
8

2
   

   
4

8
,8

7
4

   
   

5
0

,0
9

6
   

   
5

1
,3

4
8

   
   

5
2

,6
3

2
   

   
5

3
,9

4
8

   
   

5
5

,2
9

7
   

   
5

6
,6

7
9

   
   

5
8

,0
9

6
   

   
2

1
.2

9
   

  
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
11

5
11

6
4

5
,3

8
5

   
   

4
6

,5
1

9
   

   
4

7
,6

8
2

   
   

4
8

,8
7

4
   

   
5

0
,0

9
6

   
   

5
1

,3
4

8
   

   
5

2
,6

3
2

   
   

5
3

,9
4

8
   

   
5

5
,2

9
7

   
   

5
6

,6
7

9
   

   
5

8
,0

9
6

   
   

5
9

,5
4

9
   

   
2

1
.8

2
   

  
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
11

6
11

7
4

6
,5

1
9

   
   

4
7

,6
8

2
   

   
4

8
,8

7
4

   
   

5
0

,0
9

6
   

   
5

1
,3

4
8

   
   

5
2

,6
3

2
   

   
5

3
,9

4
8

   
   

5
5

,2
9

7
   

   
5

6
,6

7
9

   
   

5
8

,0
9

6
   

   
5

9
,5

4
9

   
   

6
1

,0
3

7
   

   
2

2
.3

7
   

  
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
11

7
11

8
4

7
,6

8
2

   
   

4
8

,8
7

4
   

   
5

0
,0

9
6

   
   

5
1

,3
4

8
   

   
5

2
,6

3
2

   
   

5
3

,9
4

8
   

   
5

5
,2

9
7

   
   

5
6

,6
7

9
   

   
5

8
,0

9
6

   
   

5
9

,5
4

9
   

   
6

1
,0

3
7

   
   

6
2

,5
6

3
   

   
2

2
.9

2
   

  
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
11

8
11

9
4

8
,8

7
4

   
   

5
0

,0
9

6
   

   
5

1
,3

4
8

   
   

5
2

,6
3

2
   

   
5

3
,9

4
8

   
   

5
5

,2
9

7
   

   
5

6
,6

7
9

   
   

5
8

,0
9

6
   

   
5

9
,5

4
9

   
   

6
1

,0
3

7
   

   
6

2
,5

6
3

   
   

6
4

,1
2

7
   

   
2

3
.5

0
   

  
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
11

9
12

0
5

0
,0

9
6

   
   

5
1

,3
4

8
   

   
5

2
,6

3
2

   
   

5
3

,9
4

8
   

   
5

5
,2

9
7

   
   

5
6

,6
7

9
   

   
5

8
,0

9
6

   
   

5
9

,5
4

9
   

   
6

1
,0

3
7

   
   

6
2

,5
6

3
   

   
6

4
,1

2
7

   
   

6
5

,7
3

0
   

   
2

4
.0

8
   

  
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
12

0
12

1
5

1
,3

4
8

   
   

5
2

,6
3

2
   

   
5

3
,9

4
8

   
   

5
5

,2
9

7
   

   
5

6
,6

7
9

   
   

5
8

,0
9

6
   

   
5

9
,5

4
9

   
   

6
1

,0
3

7
   

   
6

2
,5

6
3

   
   

6
4

,1
2

7
   

   
6

5
,7

3
0

   
   

6
7

,3
7

4
   

   
2

4
.6

9
   

  
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
12

1
12

2
5

2
,6

3
2

   
   

5
3

,9
4

8
   

   
5

5
,2

9
7

   
   

5
6

,6
7

9
   

   
5

8
,0

9
6

   
   

5
9

,5
4

9
   

   
6

1
,0

3
7

   
   

6
2

,5
6

3
   

   
6

4
,1

2
7

   
   

6
5

,7
3

0
   

   
6

7
,3

7
4

   
   

6
9

,0
5

8
   

   
2

5
.3

0
   

  
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
12

2
12

3
5

3
,9

4
8

   
   

5
5

,2
9

7
   

   
5

6
,6

7
9

   
   

5
8

,0
9

6
   

   
5

9
,5

4
9

   
   

6
1

,0
3

7
   

   
6

2
,5

6
3

   
   

6
4

,1
2

7
   

   
6

5
,7

3
0

   
   

6
7

,3
7

4
   

   
6

9
,0

5
8

   
   

7
0

,7
8

4
   

   
2

5
.9

4
   

  
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
12

3
12

4
5

5
,2

9
7

   
   

5
6

,6
7

9
   

   
5

8
,0

9
6

   
   

5
9

,5
4

9
   

   
6

1
,0

3
7

   
   

6
2

,5
6

3
   

   
6

4
,1

2
7

   
   

6
5

,7
3

0
   

   
6

7
,3

7
4

   
   

6
9

,0
5

8
   

   
7

0
,7

8
4

   
   

7
2

,5
5

4
   

   
2

6
.5

8
   

  
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
12

4
12

5
5

6
,6

7
9

   
   

5
8

,0
9

6
   

   
5

9
,5

4
9

   
   

6
1

,0
3

7
   

   
6

2
,5

6
3

   
   

6
4

,1
2

7
   

   
6

5
,7

3
0

   
   

6
7

,3
7

4
   

   
6

9
,0

5
8

   
   

7
0

,7
8

4
   

   
7

2
,5

5
4

   
   

7
4

,3
6

8
   

   
2

7
.2

5
   

  
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
12

5
12

6
5

8
,0

9
6

   
   

5
9

,5
4

9
   

   
6

1
,0

3
7

   
   

6
2

,5
6

3
   

   
6

4
,1

2
7

   
   

6
5

,7
3

0
   

   
6

7
,3

7
4

   
   

6
9

,0
5

8
   

   
7

0
,7

8
4

   
   

7
2

,5
5

4
   

   
7

4
,3

6
8

   
   

7
6

,2
2

7
   

   
2

7
.9

3
   

  
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
12

6
12

7
5

9
,5

4
9

   
   

6
1

,0
3

7
   

   
6

2
,5

6
3

   
   

6
4

,1
2

7
   

   
6

5
,7

3
0

   
   

6
7

,3
7

4
   

   
6

9
,0

5
8

   
   

7
0

,7
8

4
   

   
7

2
,5

5
4

   
   

7
4

,3
6

8
   

   
7

6
,2

2
7

   
   

7
8

,1
3

3
   

   
2

8
.6

3
   

  
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
12

7
12

8
6

1
,0

3
7

   
   

6
2

,5
6

3
   

   
6

4
,1

2
7

   
   

6
5

,7
3

0
   

   
6

7
,3

7
4

   
   

6
9

,0
5

8
   

   
7

0
,7

8
4

   
   

7
2

,5
5

4
   

   
7

4
,3

6
8

   
   

7
6

,2
2

7
   

   
7

8
,1

3
3

   
   

8
0

,0
8

6
   

   
2

9
.3

4
   

  
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
12

8
12

9
6

2
,5

6
3

   
   

6
4

,1
2

7
   

   
6

5
,7

3
0

   
   

6
7

,3
7

4
   

   
6

9
,0

5
8

   
   

7
0

,7
8

4
   

   
7

2
,5

5
4

   
   

7
4

,3
6

8
   

   
7

6
,2

2
7

   
   

7
8

,1
3

3
   

   
8

0
,0

8
6

   
   

8
2

,0
8

8
   

   
3

0
.0

8
   

  
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
12

9
13

0
6

4
,1

2
7

   
   

6
5

,7
3

0
   

   
6

7
,3

7
4

   
   

6
9

,0
5

8
   

   
7

0
,7

8
4

   
   

7
2

,5
5

4
   

   
7

4
,3

6
8

   
   

7
6

,2
2

7
   

   
7

8
,1

3
3

   
   

8
0

,0
8

6
   

   
8

2
,0

8
8

   
   

8
4

,1
4

0
   

   
3

0
.8

3
   

  
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
13

0
13

1
6

5
,7

3
0

   
   

6
7

,3
7

4
   

   
6

9
,0

5
8

   
   

7
0

,7
8

4
   

   
7

2
,5

5
4

   
   

7
4

,3
6

8
   

   
7

6
,2

2
7

   
   

7
8

,1
3

3
   

   
8

0
,0

8
6

   
   

8
2

,0
8

8
   

   
8

4
,1

4
0

   
   

8
6

,2
4

4
   

   
3

1
.6

0
   

  
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
13

1
13

2
6

7
,3

7
4

   
   

6
9

,0
5

8
   

   
7

0
,7

8
4

   
   

7
2

,5
5

4
   

   
7

4
,3

6
8

   
   

7
6

,2
2

7
   

   
7

8
,1

3
3

   
   

8
0

,0
8

6
   

   
8

2
,0

8
8

   
   

8
4

,1
4

0
   

   
8

6
,2

4
4

   
   

8
8

,4
0

0
   

   
3

2
.3

9
   

  
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
4

2
.5

0
   

  
13

2
13

3
6

9
,0

5
8

   
   

7
0

,7
8

4
   

   
7

2
,5

5
4

   
   

7
4

,3
6

8
   

   
7

6
,2

2
7

   
   

7
8

,1
3

3
   

   
8

0
,0

8
6

   
   

8
2

,0
8

8
   

   
8

4
,1

4
0

   
   

8
6

,2
4

4
   

   
8

8
,4

0
0

   
   

9
0

,6
1

0
   

   
3

3
.2

0
   

  
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
4

2
.5

0
   

  
4

3
.5

6
   

  
13

3
13

4
7

0
,7

8
4

   
   

7
2

,5
5

4
   

   
7

4
,3

6
8

   
   

7
6

,2
2

7
   

   
7

8
,1

3
3

   
   

8
0

,0
8

6
   

   
8

2
,0

8
8

   
   

8
4

,1
4

0
   

   
8

6
,2

4
4

   
   

8
8

,4
0

0
   

   
9

0
,6

1
0

   
   

9
2

,8
7

5
   

   
3

4
.0

3
   

  
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
4

2
.5

0
   

  
4

3
.5

6
   

  
4

4
.6

5
   

  
13

4
13

5
7

2
,5

5
4

   
   

7
4

,3
6

8
   

   
7

6
,2

2
7

   
   

7
8

,1
3

3
   

   
8

0
,0

8
6

   
   

8
2

,0
8

8
   

   
8

4
,1

4
0

   
   

8
6

,2
4

4
   

   
8

8
,4

0
0

   
   

9
0

,6
1

0
   

   
9

2
,8

7
5

   
   

9
5

,1
9

7
   

   
3

4
.8

8
   

  
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
4

2
.5

0
   

  
4

3
.5

6
   

  
4

4
.6

5
   

  
4

5
.7

7
   

  
13

5
13

6
7

4
,3

6
8

   
   

7
6

,2
2

7
   

   
7

8
,1

3
3

   
   

8
0

,0
8

6
   

   
8

2
,0

8
8

   
   

8
4

,1
4

0
   

   
8

6
,2

4
4

   
   

8
8

,4
0

0
   

   
9

0
,6

1
0

   
   

9
2

,8
7

5
   

   
9

5
,1

9
7

   
   

9
7

,5
7

7
   

   
3

5
.7

5
   

  
3

6
.6

5
   

  
3

7
.5

6
   

  
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
4

2
.5

0
   

  
4

3
.5

6
   

  
4

4
.6

5
   

  
4

5
.7

7
   

  
4

6
.9

1
   

  
13

6
13

7
7

6
,2

2
7

   
   

7
8

,1
3

3
   

   
8

0
,0

8
6

   
   

8
2

,0
8

8
   

   
8

4
,1

4
0

   
   

8
6

,2
4

4
   

   
8

8
,4

0
0

   
   

9
0

,6
1

0
   

   
9

2
,8

7
5

   
   

9
5

,1
9

7
   

   
9

7
,5

7
7

   
   

1
0

0
,0

1
7

   
 

3
6

.6
5

   
  

3
7

.5
6

   
  

3
8

.5
0

   
  

3
9

.4
7

   
  

4
0

.4
5

   
  

4
1

.4
6

   
  

4
2

.5
0

   
  

4
3

.5
6

   
  

4
4

.6
5

   
  

4
5

.7
7

   
  

4
6

.9
1

   
  

4
8

.0
8

   
  

13
7

13
8

7
8

,1
3

3
   

   
8

0
,0

8
6

   
   

8
2

,0
8

8
   

   
8

4
,1

4
0

   
   

8
6

,2
4

4
   

   
8

8
,4

0
0

   
   

9
0

,6
1

0
   

   
9

2
,8

7
5

   
   

9
5

,1
9

7
   

   
9

7
,5

7
7

   
   

1
0

0
,0

1
7

   
 

1
0

2
,5

1
7

   
 

3
7

.5
6

   
  

3
8

.5
0

   
  

3
9

.4
7

   
  

4
0

.4
5

   
  

4
1

.4
6

   
  

4
2

.5
0

   
  

4
3

.5
6

   
  

4
4

.6
5

   
  

4
5

.7
7

   
  

4
6

.9
1

   
  

4
8

.0
8

   
  

4
9

.2
9

   
  

13
8

23
9

8
0

,0
8

6
   

   
8

2
,0

8
8

   
   

8
4

,1
4

0
   

   
8

6
,2

4
4

   
   

8
8

,4
0

0
   

   
9

0
,6

1
0

   
   

9
2

,8
7

5
   

   
9

5
,1

9
7

   
   

9
7

,5
7

7
   

   
1

0
0

,0
1

7
   

 
1

0
2

,5
1

7
   

 
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
3

8
.5

0
   

  
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
4

2
.5

0
   

  
4

3
.5

6
   

  
4

4
.6

5
   

  
4

5
.7

7
   

  
4

6
.9

1
   

  
4

8
.0

8
   

  
4

9
.2

9
   

  
5

0
.5

2
   

  
23

9
24

0
8

2
,0

8
8

   
   

8
4

,1
4

0
   

   
8

6
,2

4
4

   
   

8
8

,4
0

0
   

   
9

0
,6

1
0

   
   

9
2

,8
7

5
   

   
9

5
,1

9
7

   
   

9
7

,5
7

7
   

   
1

0
0

,0
1

7
   

 
1

0
2

,5
1

7
   

 
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
1

0
7

,7
0

7
   

 
3

9
.4

7
   

  
4

0
.4

5
   

  
4

1
.4

6
   

  
4

2
.5

0
   

  
4

3
.5

6
   

  
4

4
.6

5
   

  
4

5
.7

7
   

  
4

6
.9

1
   

  
4

8
.0

8
   

  
4

9
.2

9
   

  
5

0
.5

2
   

  
5

1
.7

8
   

  
24

0
24

1
8

4
,1

4
0

   
   

8
6

,2
4

4
   

   
8

8
,4

0
0

   
   

9
0

,6
1

0
   

   
9

2
,8

7
5

   
   

9
5

,1
9

7
   

   
9

7
,5

7
7

   
   

1
0

0
,0

1
7

   
 

1
0

2
,5

1
7

   
 

1
0

5
,0

8
0

   
 

1
0

7
,7

0
7

   
 

1
1

0
,4

0
0

   
 

4
0

.4
5

   
  

4
1

.4
6

   
  

4
2

.5
0

   
  

4
3

.5
6

   
  

4
4

.6
5

   
  

4
5

.7
7

   
  

4
6

.9
1

   
  

4
8

.0
8

   
  

4
9

.2
9

   
  

5
0

.5
2

   
  

5
1

.7
8

   
  

5
3

.0
8

   
  

24
1

24
2

8
6

,2
4

4
   

   
8

8
,4

0
0

   
   

9
0

,6
1

0
   

   
9

2
,8

7
5

   
   

9
5

,1
9

7
   

   
9

7
,5

7
7

   
   

1
0

0
,0

1
7

   
 

1
0

2
,5

1
7

   
 

1
0

5
,0

8
0

   
 

1
0

7
,7

0
7

   
 

1
1

0
,4

0
0

   
 

1
1

3
,1

6
0

   
 

4
1

.4
6

   
  

4
2

.5
0

   
  

4
3

.5
6

   
  

4
4

.6
5

   
  

4
5

.7
7

   
  

4
6

.9
1

   
  

4
8

.0
8

   
  

4
9

.2
9

   
  

5
0

.5
2

   
  

5
1

.7
8

   
  

5
3

.0
8

   
  

5
4

.4
0

   
  

24
2

24
3

8
8

,4
0

0
   

   
9

0
,6

1
0

   
   

9
2

,8
7

5
   

   
9

5
,1

9
7

   
   

9
7

,5
7

7
   

   
1

0
0

,0
1

7
   

 
1

0
2

,5
1

7
   

 
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
1

0
7

,7
0

7
   

 
1

1
0

,4
0

0
   

 
1

1
3

,1
6

0
   

 
1

1
5

,9
8

9
   

 
4

2
.5

0
   

  
4

3
.5

6
   

  
4

4
.6

5
   

  
4

5
.7

7
   

  
4

6
.9

1
   

  
4

8
.0

8
   

  
4

9
.2

9
   

  
5

0
.5

2
   

  
5

1
.7

8
   

  
5

3
.0

8
   

  
5

4
.4

0
   

  
5

5
.7

6
   

  
24

3
24

4
9

0
,6

1
0

   
   

9
2

,8
7

5
   

   
9

5
,1

9
7

   
   

9
7

,5
7

7
   

   
1

0
0

,0
1

7
   

 
1

0
2

,5
1

7
   

 
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
1

0
7

,7
0

7
   

 
1

1
0

,4
0

0
   

 
1

1
3

,1
6

0
   

 
1

1
5

,9
8

9
   

 
1

1
8

,8
8

8
   

 
4

3
.5

6
   

  
4

4
.6

5
   

  
4

5
.7

7
   

  
4

6
.9

1
   

  
4

8
.0

8
   

  
4

9
.2

9
   

  
5

0
.5

2
   

  
5

1
.7

8
   

  
5

3
.0

8
   

  
5

4
.4

0
   

  
5

5
.7

6
   

  
5

7
.1

6
   

  
24

4
24

5
9

2
,8

7
5

   
   

9
5

,1
9

7
   

   
9

7
,5

7
7

   
   

1
0

0
,0

1
7

   
 

1
0

2
,5

1
7

   
 

1
0

5
,0

8
0

   
 

1
0

7
,7

0
7

   
 

1
1

0
,4

0
0

   
 

1
1

3
,1

6
0

   
 

1
1

5
,9

8
9

   
 

1
1

8
,8

8
8

   
 

1
2

1
,8

6
1

   
 

4
4

.6
5

   
  

4
5

.7
7

   
  

4
6

.9
1

   
  

4
8

.0
8

   
  

4
9

.2
9

   
  

5
0

.5
2

   
  

5
1

.7
8

   
  

5
3

.0
8

   
  

5
4

.4
0

   
  

5
5

.7
6

   
  

5
7

.1
6

   
  

5
8

.5
9

   
  

24
5

24
6

9
5

,1
9

7
   

   
9

7
,5

7
7

   
   

1
0

0
,0

1
7

   
 

1
0

2
,5

1
7

   
 

1
0

5
,0

8
0

   
 

1
0

7
,7

0
7

   
 

1
1

0
,4

0
0

   
 

1
1

3
,1

6
0

   
 

1
1

5
,9

8
9

   
 

1
1

8
,8

8
8

   
 

1
2

1
,8

6
1

   
 

1
2

4
,9

0
7

   
 

4
5

.7
7

   
  

4
6

.9
1

   
  

4
8

.0
8

   
  

4
9

.2
9

   
  

5
0

.5
2

   
  

5
1

.7
8

   
  

5
3

.0
8

   
  

5
4

.4
0

   
  

5
5

.7
6

   
  

5
7

.1
6

   
  

5
8

.5
9

   
  

6
0

.0
5

   
  

24
6

24
7

9
7

,5
7

7
   

   
1

0
0

,0
1

7
   

 
1

0
2

,5
1

7
   

 
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
1

0
7

,7
0

7
   

 
1

1
0

,4
0

0
   

 
1

1
3

,1
6

0
   

 
1

1
5

,9
8

9
   

 
1

1
8

,8
8

8
   

 
1

2
1

,8
6

1
   

 
1

2
4

,9
0

7
   

 
1

2
8

,0
3

0
   

 
4

6
.9

1
   

  
4

8
.0

8
   

  
4

9
.2

9
   

  
5

0
.5

2
   

  
5

1
.7

8
   

  
5

3
.0

8
   

  
5

4
.4

0
   

  
5

5
.7

6
   

  
5

7
.1

6
   

  
5

8
.5

9
   

  
6

0
.0

5
   

  
6

1
.5

5
   

  
24

7
24

8
1

0
0

,0
1

7
   

 
1

0
2

,5
1

7
   

 
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
1

0
7

,7
0

7
   

 
1

1
0

,4
0

0
   

 
1

1
3

,1
6

0
   

 
1

1
5

,9
8

9
   

 
1

1
8

,8
8

8
   

 
1

2
1

,8
6

1
   

 
1

2
4

,9
0

7
   

 
1

2
8

,0
3

0
   

 
1

3
1

,2
3

0
   

 
4

8
.0

8
   

  
4

9
.2

9
   

  
5

0
.5

2
   

  
5

1
.7

8
   

  
5

3
.0

8
   

  
5

4
.4

0
   

  
5

5
.7

6
   

  
5

7
.1

6
   

  
5

8
.5

9
   

  
6

0
.0

5
   

  
6

1
.5

5
   

  
6

3
.0

9
   

  
24

8
24

9
1

0
2

,5
1

7
   

 
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
1

0
7

,7
0

7
   

 
1

1
0

,4
0

0
   

 
1

1
3

,1
6

0
   

 
1

1
5

,9
8

9
   

 
1

1
8

,8
8

8
   

 
1

2
1

,8
6

1
   

 
1

2
4

,9
0

7
   

 
1

2
8

,0
3

0
   

 
1

3
1

,2
3

0
   

 
1

3
4

,5
1

1
   

 
4

9
.2

9
   

  
5

0
.5

2
   

  
5

1
.7

8
   

  
5

3
.0

8
   

  
5

4
.4

0
   

  
5

5
.7

6
   

  
5

7
.1

6
   

  
5

8
.5

9
   

  
6

0
.0

5
   

  
6

1
.5

5
   

  
6

3
.0

9
   

  
6

4
.6

7
   

  
24

9
25

0
1

0
5

,0
8

0
   

 
1

0
7

,7
0

7
   

 
1

1
0

,4
0

0
   

 
1

1
3

,1
6

0
   

 
1

1
5

,9
8

9
   

 
1

1
8

,8
8

8
   

 
1

2
1

,8
6

1
   

 
1

2
4

,9
0

7
   

 
1

2
8

,0
3

0
   

 
1

3
1

,2
3

0
   

 
1

3
4

,5
1

1
   

 
1

3
7

,8
7

4
   

 
5

0
.5

2
   

  
5

1
.7

8
   

  
5

3
.0

8
   

  
5

4
.4

0
   

  
5

5
.7

6
   

  
5

7
.1

6
   

  
5

8
.5

9
   

  
6

0
.0

5
   

  
6

1
.5

5
   

  
6

3
.0

9
   

  
6

4
.6

7
   

  
6

6
.2

9
   

  
25

0

: B
lu

e 
sh

ad
in

g 
in

di
ca

te
s 

cu
rre

nt
 la

bo
r g

ra
de

s

Sa
la

ry
 

R
an

ge
H

ou
rly

*S
al

ar
y 

sc
he

du
le

 in
cl

ud
es

 ro
un

di
ng

; t
he

re
fo

re
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

es
 m

ay
 v

ar
y 

sl
ig

ht
ly

Sa
la

ry
 

R
an

ge
A

nn
ua

lly

U
pd

at
ed

: 3
/1
1/

24

A
TT

A
C

H
M

EN
T 

1



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*** PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK *** 



ITEM NO. 9 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2024 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Brandon Yoshida, Board Clerk 
   
SUBJECT: ELECTION MARKETING PLAN FOR THE NOVEMBER 2024 GENERAL ELECTION 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Review, discuss, and provide feedback on the election marketing plan for the November 
2024 General Election. 

 
BACKGROUND  
 
The Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District), like many water districts and other special 
districts, has had low candidate turnout for their General Elections in the past. As stated in the 
service review of Water Conservation Districts in the Valley Region from the Local Agency 
Formation Commission of San Bernardino County (LAFCO), the District has not consistently 
yielded enough candidates for the Board of Directors to field competitive elections. 
 
The Divisions present on the November 2024 General Election are as follows: 
 
Division 2 – Director Layton was appointed to replace Grupposo, with the term ending in 2024. 
Former Director Grupposo did win a competitive election for that term. 
Division 3 – Director Coker was appointed to replace Director Hamilton, who passed away while 
in office, with term ending in 2024. Director Coker was chosen from six candidates who applied 
to fill the vacancy. The actual term extends through 2026, but as Director Hamilton passed away 
in the beginning of her term, the seat will be up for election in the next general election, which 
is in 2024. 
Division 4 – Director Ligtenberg, with the term ending in 2024. 
Division 5 – Director Aldaco, with the term ending in 2024. 
Division 6 – Director Gulmahamad, with the term ending in 2024. 
 
The District aims to increase the promotion of the opportunity to run for seats on the CBWCD 
Board during General Elections through various means of advertisement to entice the 
constituents within the District’s service area to become more involved with the District’s 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 

election process. The process for advertising elections is generally unchanged from agency to 
agency and is particularly common in municipal governments, which field a much higher rate of 
competition for elected office. Typical advertising methods include much of what is outlined 
within this staff report. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
Staff developed numerous ideas to assist with community outreach. Staff identified two 
categories in which the District will use as the primary ways to engage the public during the 2024 
Election period: advertisement and outreach. 
 
The Nomination Period for the 2024 General Election opens in July and runs until early August. 
The most crucial time to advertise the Election to attract prospective candidates would be May 
through early August. Advertising early allows candidates to work with the County of San 
Bernardino, the Fair Political Practice Commission, and the District to address any questions or 
concerns they may have about the process. The District consolidates most Election 
Administrative services with the County of San Bernardino; therefore, most questions or 
concerns will be filed through the County.  
 
However, as part of the effort to advertise and provide transparency to the public, the District 
will provide a webpage on the District website regarding any and all information for the 2024 
November General Election and election process. This webpage will include flyers circulated, 
advertisements posted, events the District will be present at to advertise, and official election 
documents such as candidate information. 
 
Advertisement 

• At least 2 published advertisements in each of two different local, adjudicated 
newspapers. This is in addition to the advertisements required by the Elections Code. Staff 
suggest advertising in both The Daily Bulletin and The Chino Champion. 

• District newsletter reminders. 
• Social media posts to Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, NextDoor, and any other social 

media platforms. 
• E-mail notifications for those signed up to the newsletter. 
• Potential: Jesse Armendarez, County of San Bernardino Supervisor Newsletter 
• Potential: Curt Hagman, County of San Bernardino Supervisor Newsletter 
• Election Process Video posted on the District website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 

Outreach 
The District may distribute printed flyers to various organizations and agencies, as permitted, to 
either have them available for the public or posted on public bulletin boards. Organizations and 
agencies include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Notice Board of CBWCD 
Headquarters 

• City of Ontario 
• City of Montclair 
• City of Chino 
• City of Rancho Cucamonga 
• County of San Bernardino 
• Chaffey College 
• Claremont Graduate University 
• Monte Vista Water District 
• Cucamonga Valley Water District 

• Ontario-Montclair Unified School 
District 

• Montclair Chamber of Commerce 
• Chino Valley Rotary Club 
• Ontario-Montclair Rotary Club 
• Rancho Cucamonga Rotary Club 
• Ontario Kiwanis Club 
• Chino Kiwanis Club 
• American Legion Post 299 

 

 
The District may also set up booths or tables at various community events, as permitted, which 
include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Local events such as City of Chino Summer Nights, City of Ontario Kids to Parks Day, etc. 
• CBWCD Dog Days of Summer. 
• CBWCD Workshops. 
• Farmers & Artisans Markets within local area. 

 
Additionally, Monte Vista Water District (MVWD), Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD), East 
Valley Water District (EVWD), and San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District (SBVWCD) 
provided input on their efforts during election season. MVWD performed much of the same 
advertising efforts, including flyer distribution, event participation, and public outreach through 
social media. SBVWCD, EVWD, and CVWD perform most of their advertising for their election 
through their Board of Directors meetings and online through their website. SBVWD, EVWD, and 
CVWD do not have election marketing plans in place. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 4 of 4 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with the staff recommendation. However, based on 
newspaper notices the District has previously submitted, the District can expect a cost of $180 - 
$250 dollars per notice. There is also the potential for overtime if the District does allow 
employees to set up booths and attend local events, which could happen on weekends or after 
operating hours. Other than those two factors, there are no other substantial costs associated 
with the activities listed in the staff report. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1: November 2024 General Election Flyer Sample 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DIVISIONS - 2  3  4  5  6

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

for the November General Election

Candidate filing period is
July 22-August 16, 2024

THE CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT WAS
CREATED TO PROTECT AND REPLENISH OUR REGIONAL

GROUNDWATER SUPPLY BY CAPTURING RAINWATER AND
STORING IT IN THE CHINO GROUNDWATER BASIN

Waterwise Community Center
4594 San Bernardino Street

Montclair, CA 91763
Phone: 909-626-2711

MORE INFO AT CBWCD.ORG/ELECTIONS

ATTACHMENT 1



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*** PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK *** 



ITEM NO. 10 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2024 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
 
BY:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
   
SUBJECT: AWARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 2024-02 TO 19SIX 

ARCHITECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $124,900, FOR THE DESIGN AND ENGINEERING 
ENHANCEMENTS TO THE DISTRICT OUTDOOR AMPHITHEATER 

   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Review, discuss, and approve the awarding of a professional services agreement to 19Six 
Architects in the amount of $124,900, for the design and engineering enhancements to 
the District Outdoor Amphitheater. 

 
BACKGROUND  
 
In October 2023, the Board approved the release of a Request for Proposals for Design and 
Engineering Services for an Amphitheater Roof, Enhancement, and Recladding (RFP 2023-02). 
The RFP was posted on the District’s website, advertised and it was also emailed to Construction 
Dodge Construction Network, Southern California Builders Association, Construction BidBoard, 
Inc., and BidAmerica on October 17, 2023. Questions pertaining to the RFP were received up until 
November 2, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. and responded to by November 9, 2023.  
 
The purpose of the project is to design and build a new roof for the amphitheater in the District’s 
Waterwise Demonstration Garden that will protect occupants from rain and sun. The current 
retractable transparent awning only covers about half of the audience and the front part of the 
stage. The cover itself is made of an outdoor canvass fabric that can be pulled along a cord 
system, and as such, even fully extended it provides minimal cover from the sun. It provides no 
protection from rain.  
 
A rain shelter over the amphitheater will allow the Community Programs Department to run 
outdoor programming from that location during rainy days and during days following large 
rainstorms after which the ground outside is wet.  
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 

The District serves approximately 70 students during each field trip. Upon arrival, the students 
are split into two groups. One is given an indoor lesson in the Margaret Hamilton Education 
Building and one receives instruction in an outdoor “garden exploration” lesson or a lesson in the 
basin classroom. On dry days, students receive instructions for their outdoor lesson in the 
amphitheater before starting the garden exploration portion of the lesson. This arrangement is 
not possible during rainy days, so currently, the Community Programs Department holds the 
instruction sessions in the Board Room before sending the kids to explore the garden in the rain. 
As a result, the Board Room is booked Tuesday – Thursday from mid-October through mid-May, 
which makes it impossible to use the Board Room for any other purpose.  
 
Even with this situation, the Board and staff agreed in December 2023 to push the construction 
back to 2025 so that the garden would not be a construction zone during the District’s 75th 
Anniversary events. Therefore, the architectural and engineering firms would be hired in spring 
2024 with a plan to begin construction in May 2025, after field trip season ends. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
  
The Request for Proposals listed a scope of work that included: 

• Preparing three (3) conceptual level color renderings that illustrate the amphitheater 
enhancements, which must be prepared in close community with the CBWCD. 

• Prepare Cost Estimates based on concepts developed.  
• Based on approved design, prepare final construction drawings, specifications, and assist 

District Staff in moving to the bid phase of the project. Include cost estimate for the entire 
project.  

• Provide construction administration services including, but not limited to permitting 
process, Request for Information (RFI’s), change orders, project meetings, final sign off of 
the project, etc.  

 
Proposals were received up until November 16, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. and the District received 
proposals from three architectural and engineering firms. The responding firms were: 
 

• 19Six Architects with a bid of $124,900 
• Carl Welty Architects with a bid of $75,200 
• LOC Architects with a bid of $64,785 

 
The selection panel evaluated the proposals received by each firm based on the following oral 
criteria: 

• Clear understanding of the project, needs, potential issues, and approach to Design and 
Engineering Services. 

• Innovative approaches and solutions to potential project issues. 
• Project cost and schedule control. 
• Qualifications and experience. 
• Oral communication as it relates to response to questions. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: APRIL 8, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

The following table summarizes the proposals rankings: 
Firm Rank 

19six Architects 1 
LOC Architects 2 
Carl Welty Architects 3 

 
Only one of the firms was fully responsive to the RFP by addressing the entire scope of work. That 
firm was 19Six. The other firms did not include assisting District staff in moving through the 
construction bidding phase of the project or full assistance with construction management.  
 
During the oral interviews of the firms, the representatives of 19Six included a team of 
professionals with experience in architectural design, structural engineering, permitting, and 
construction management, and made it clear that the firm would be with District staff from the 
kick off meeting on design to the final job walk after construction. 19Six was the most qualified 
firm and included the largest and most responsive scope of work. 
 
Based on the rankings and positive reference check, staff recommends that 19Six Architects be 
awarded a professional services agreement to provide design and engineering services for the 
amphitheater roof, enhancement, and recladding.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The District budgeted $62,000 in Acct No. 58000: Capital Expense for the design and engineering 
associated with the amphitheater project in FY 23-24. The total cost was bid at $124,900, which 
will be spent over two fiscal years: FY 23-24 and FY 24-25. The additional funds, therefore, can 
be included as a part of the FY 24-25 budget. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1: Professional Services Agreement with 19Six Architects, dated April 8, 2024 
Attachment 2: Proposal received from 19Six Architects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Page 1 of 19 

2023.08.04 

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 2024-02 

WITH 19SIX ARCHITECTS 
 
1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
8th day of April, 2024 (“Effective Date”) by and between the CHINO BASIN WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, a special district organized under the laws of the State of 
California with its principal place of business at 4594 San Bernardino Street, Montclair, CA 
91763 (“District”) and 19SIX ARCHITECTS a California corporation with its principal place 
of business at 560 Higuera St., Suite C, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 (“Consultant”).  District 
and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as 
“Parties” in this Agreement. 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Consultant. 

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of 
certain professional services required by the District on the terms and conditions set forth 
in this Agreement. Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing design and 
engineering services to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar 
with the plans of District. 

2.2 Project 

District desires to engage Consultant to render such services to support the 
District’s Amphitheater Roof, Enhancements, and Recladding Project as they may arise 
and are procured (“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services, Term, and Compensation. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish 
to the District all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and 
customary work necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional engineering 
and design services necessary for the Project (“Services”). The Services are more 
particularly described in EXHIBIT “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, this 
Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all 
applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

ATTACHMENT 1



 

 
Page 2 of 19 

2023.08.04 

3.1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be three (3) yearS from the 
Effective Date, with the option of two one (1) year extensions, unless earlier terminated 
as provided herein. Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this 
Agreement and shall meet any other established schedules and deadlines.  The Parties 
may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to 
complete the Services. 

3.1.3 Compensation. Consultant shall be paid an amount not to exceed 
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR THOUSAND AND NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($124,900.00). 
The authorized Tasks, payment terms, and schedule of payments are set forth in EXHIBIT 
“B”. 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor. The 
Services shall be performed by consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will 
determine the means, methods, and details of performing the Services subject to the 
requirements of this Agreement.  District retains Consultant on an independent 
contractor basis and not as an employee.  Consultant retains the right to perform similar 
or different services for others during the term of this Agreement.  Any additional 
personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of consultant shall 
also not be employees of District and shall at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive 
direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 
such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement 
and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations 
respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, 
income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services. Consultant shall perform the Services 
expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 
Services set forth in EXHIBIT “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to 
perform the Services in conformance with such conditions. In order to facilitate 
Consultant’s conformance with the Schedule, District shall respond to Consultant’s 
submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of District, Consultant shall provide a more 
detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements. All work prepared by 
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of District. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel. Consultant has represented to District 
that certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this 
Agreement.  Should one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may 



 

 
Page 3 of 19 

2023.08.04 

substitute other personnel of at least equal competence upon written approval of District.  
In the event that District and Consultant cannot agree as to the substitution of key 
personnel, District shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed 
below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable 
to the District, or who are determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, 
a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of 
persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant at the 
request of the District.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as 
follows: Joe Monfreda  

3.2.5 District’s Representative. The District hereby designates the General 
Manager or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 
Agreement (“District’s Representative”).  District’s Representative shall have the power 
to act on behalf of the District for all purposes under this Agreement.  Consultant shall 
not accept direction or orders from any person other than the District’s Representative 
or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative. Consultant hereby designates Joe 
Monfreda, or their designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this 
Agreement (“Consultant’s Representative”). Consultant’s Representative shall have full 
authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this 
Agreement.  The Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, 
using his/her best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 
portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services. Consultant agrees to work closely with 
District staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to District’s staff, 
consultants and other staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees. Consultant shall 
perform all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent 
with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same 
discipline in the State of California.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled 
in the professional calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all 
employees and subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the 
Services assigned to them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and 
subconsultants have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature 
that are legally required to perform the Services and that such licenses and approvals shall 
be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the 
indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost 
and expense and without reimbursement from the District, any services necessary to 
correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with 
the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Consultant or its sub-



 

 
Page 4 of 19 

2023.08.04 

consultants who is determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat 
to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or 
property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner 
acceptable to the District, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall 
perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in 
Section 3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Consultant shall also perform the Services in 
strict accordance with any completion schedule or Project milestones described in future 
submitted proposals and EXHIBIT “A” attached hereto, or which may be separately 
agreed upon in writing by the District and Consultant (“Performance Milestones”).  
Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned 
Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant 
to provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the 
District will suffer damage. Consultant acknowledges that the actual damages likely to 
result from breach of the Performance Time and Performance Milestone provisions are 
difficult to ascertain on the date this Agreement is entered into and may be difficult for 
the District to prove in the event of a breach. Therefore, the parties intend that the 
payment of Liquidated Damages in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) for each 
day of delay would serve to reasonably compensate the District for the District’s actual 
damages sustained, and not as a penalty, due to any breach by Consultant of its 
Performance Time and Performance Milestone obligations under this agreement, and 
Consultant agrees to pay this amount to the District for each breach of the Performance 
Time and Performance Milestone provisions. 

3.2.10 Laws and Regulations; Employee/Labor Certifications. Consultant 
shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, 
rules and regulations in any manner affecting the performance of the Project or the 
Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall give all notices required by law.  
Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations in connection with 
Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, 
rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the District, Consultant shall be 
solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and 
hold District, its officials, directors, officers, employees, and agents free and harmless, 
pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability 
arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10.1 Employment Eligibility; Consultant. By executing this 
Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements and restrictions 
of state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, including, 
but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended 
from time to time.  Such requirements and restrictions include, but are not limited to, 
examination and retention of documentation confirming the identity and immigration 



 

 
Page 5 of 19 

2023.08.04 

status of each employee of the Consultant.  Consultant also verifies that it has not 
committed a violation of any such law within the five (5) years immediately preceding the 
date of execution of this Agreement and shall not violate any such law at any time during 
the term of the Agreement.  Consultant shall avoid any violation of any such law during 
the term of this Agreement by participating in an electronic verification of work 
authorization program operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security, 
by participating in an equivalent federal work authorization program operated by the 
United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly hired 
employees, or by some other legally acceptable method.  Consultant shall maintain 
records of each such verification and shall make them available to the District or its 
representatives for inspection and copy at any time during normal business hours.  The 
District shall not be responsible for any costs or expenses related to Consultant’s 
compliance with the requirements provided for in Section 3.2.10 or any of its sub-
sections. 

3.2.10.2 Employment Eligibility; Subcontractors, Consultants, Sub-
subcontractors and Subconsultants. To the same extent and under the same conditions 
as Consultant, Consultant shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, sub-
subcontractors and subconsultants performing any work relating to the Project or this 
Agreement to make the same verifications and comply with all requirements and 
restrictions provided for in Section 3.2.10.1. 

3.2.10.3 Employment Eligibility; Failure to Comply. Each person 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant verifies that they are a duly authorized 
officer of Consultant, and understands that any of the following shall be grounds for the 
District to terminate the Agreement for cause: (1) failure of Consultant or its 
subcontractors, consultants, sub-subcontractors or subconsultants to meet any of the 
requirements provided for in Sections 3.2.10.1 or 3.2.10.2; (2) any misrepresentation or 
material omission concerning compliance with such requirements (including in those 
verifications provided to the Consultant under Section 3.2.10.2); or (3) failure to 
immediately remove from the Project any person found not to be in compliance with such 
requirements. 

3.2.10.4 Labor Certification. By its signature hereunder, Consultant 
certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code 
which require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation 
or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code and agrees 
to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.2.10.5 Equal Opportunity Employment. Consultant represents 
that it is an equal opportunity employer, and it shall not discriminate against any 
subconsultant, employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, 
national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but 
not be limited to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, 



 

 
Page 6 of 19 

2023.08.04 

transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination.  Consultant shall 
also comply with all relevant provisions of District’s Minority Business Enterprise 
program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in 
effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.2.10.6 Air Quality. To the extent applicable, Consultant must fully 
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in furnishing or using equipment 
and/or providing services, including, but not limited to, emissions limits and permitting 
requirements imposed by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
and/or California Air Resources Board (CARB).  Although the SCAQMD and CARB limits 
and requirements are more broad, Consultant shall specifically be aware of their 
application to "portable equipment", which definition is considered by SCAQMD and 
CARB to include any item of equipment with a fuel-powered engine.  Consultant shall 
indemnify District against any fines or penalties imposed by SCAQMD, CARB, or any other 
governmental or regulatory agency for violations of applicable laws, rules and/or 
regulations by Consultant, its subconsultants, or others for whom Consultant is 
responsible under its indemnity obligations provided for in this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Insurance. 

3.2.11.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence 
Services under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the District 
that it has secured all insurance required under this Section.  In addition, Consultant shall 
not allow any subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided 
evidence satisfactory to the District that the subconsultant has secured all insurance 
required under this Section. 

3.2.11.2 Minimum Requirements. Consultant shall, at its expense, 
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with 
the performance of the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, 
employees or subconsultants.  Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to 
procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration of the Agreement. Such 
insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of coverage: 

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at 
least as broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) 
Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 
0001, code 1 (any auto); and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: 
Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s 
Liability Insurance.  The policy shall not contain any exclusion contrary to the Agreement, 
including but not limited to endorsements or provisions limiting coverage for (1) 



 

 
Page 7 of 19 

2023.08.04 

contractual liability (including but not limited to ISO CG 24 26 or 21 29); or (2) cross liability 
for claims or suits by one insured against another.   

B. Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall 
maintain limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000 MINIMUM; per occurrence 
for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability 
Insurance or other form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, 
form CG 2503, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence 
limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 MINIMUM; per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ 
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  Employer’s 
Liability limits of $1,000,000 MINIMUM; per accident for bodily injury or disease.  Defense 
costs shall be paid in addition to the limits.   

C. Notices; Cancellation or Reduction of Coverage.  At 
least fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of any such policy, evidence showing that 
such insurance coverage has been renewed or extended shall be filed with the District.  If 
such coverage is cancelled or materially reduced, Consultant shall, within ten (10) days 
after receipt of written notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage, file with the 
District evidence of insurance showing that the required insurance has been reinstated or 
has been provided through another insurance company or companies.  In the event any 
policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with these 
specifications or is canceled and not replaced, the District has the right but not the duty 
to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by the District will be 
promptly reimbursed by Consultant or the District may withhold amounts sufficient to 
pay premium from Consultant payments.  In the alternative, the District may suspend or 
terminate this Agreement. 

3.2.11.3 Professional Liability. Consultant shall procure and 
maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) 
years following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance 
appropriate to their profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 MINIMUM; per claim and shall be endorsed to include contractual liability.  
Defense costs shall be paid in addition to the limits.   

3.2.11.4 Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall 
contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms 
supplied or approved by the District to add the following provisions to the insurance 
policies: 

A. General Liability. The general liability policy shall 
include or be endorsed (amended) to state that:  (1) using ISO CG forms 20 10 and 20 37, 
or endorsements providing the exact same coverage, the District, its directors, officials, 



 

 
Page 8 of 19 

2023.08.04 

officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with 
respect to the Services or ongoing and completed operations performed by or on behalf 
of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with 
such work; and (2) using ISO form 20 01, or endorsements providing the exact same 
coverage, the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in 
an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying coverage.  
Any excess insurance shall contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a 
primary and noncontributory basis for the benefit of the District, before the District’s own 
primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured.  
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall 
not be called upon to contribute with it in any way.  Notwithstanding the minimum limits 
set forth in Section 3.2.11.2(B), any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of coverage shall be available to the parties required to be named as 
additional insureds pursuant to this Section 3.2.11.4(A).   

B. Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy 
shall include or be endorsed (amended) to state that:  (1) the District, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional 
insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or 
unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Consultant or for which 
the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance 
as respects the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, 
or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 
scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess 
of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way.  
Notwithstanding the minimum limits set forth in Section 3.2.11.2(B), any available 
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of coverage shall be 
available to the parties required to be named as additional insureds pursuant to this 
Section 3.2.11.4(B). 

C. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the 
terms of the insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

D. All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, 
reduced or canceled except after thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment of premium) 
prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the 
District; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies, 
including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to the District, its 



 

 
Page 9 of 19 

2023.08.04 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  Any failure to comply 
with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall 
not affect coverage provided to the District, its officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers, or any other additional insureds. 

3.2.11.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations; Waiver of 
Subrogation. All insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of 
insureds provisions.  In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations 
on the scope of protection afforded to the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies shall waive any right of subrogation of the 
insurer against the District, its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or 
any other additional insureds, or shall specifically allow Consultant or others providing 
insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right of 
recovery prior to a loss.  Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against 
District, its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any other additional 
insureds, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from 
each of its subconsultants. 

3.2.11.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Any 
deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District.  
Consultant shall guarantee that, at the option of the District, either: (1) the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, 
and administrative and defense expenses.   

3.2.11.7 Subconsultant Insurance Requirements. Consultant shall 
not allow any subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract relating to the work 
under the Agreement until they have provided evidence satisfactory to the District that 
they have secured all insurance required under this Section.  If requested by Consultant, 
the District may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 
subconsultants.  The Consultant and the District shall be named as additional insureds on 
all subconsultants’ policies of Commercial General Liability using ISO form 20 38, or 
coverage at least as broad. 

3.2.11.8 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in 
California, and satisfactory to the District. 

3.2.11.9 Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish District 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by 
this Agreement on forms satisfactory to the District. The certificates and endorsements 
for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the District if requested.  All 



 

 
Page 10 of 19 

2023.08.04 

certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by the District before work 
commences.  The District reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.11.10 Reporting of Claims. Consultant shall report to the District, 
in addition to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant 
in connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.12 Safety. Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 
injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant 
shall at all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules 
and regulations, and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees 
appropriate to the nature of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be 
performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) 
adequate life protection and lifesaving equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in 
accident prevention for all employees and subconsultants, such as safe walkways, 
scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 
trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing 
apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) 
adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

3.2.13 Accounting Records. Consultant shall maintain complete and 
accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  
All such records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of 
District during normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies 
of such records and any other documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant 
shall allow inspection of all work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to 
the Agreement for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment under this 
Agreement. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including 
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the Tasks 
set forth in EXHIBIT “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Extra 
Work may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at 
the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation. For tasks assigned and for which 
compensation is on an hourly basis, Consultant shall submit to District a monthly itemized 
statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Consultant.  
The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the 
initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as 



 

 
Page 11 of 19 

2023.08.04 

appropriate, through the date of the statement.  District shall, within 45 days of receiving 
such statement, review the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for 
any expenses unless authorized in writing by District. 

3.3.4 Extra Work. At any time during the term of this Agreement, District 
may request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means 
any work which is determined by District to be necessary for the proper completion of 
the Project, but which the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the 
execution of this Agreement.  Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, 
Extra Work without a written change order authorized by the Board of Directors. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages. Consultant is aware of the requirements of 
California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code 
of Regulations, Title 8, Section 16000, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require 
the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on 
“public works” and “maintenance” projects.  If the Services are being performed as part 
of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing 
Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully 
comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  District shall provide Consultant with a copy of 
the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  
Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, 
classification or type of worker needed to execute the Services available to interested 
parties upon request and shall post copies at the Consultant’s principal place of business 
and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its 
elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or 
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage 
Laws. 

3.4 Termination of Agreement. 

3.4.1 Grounds for Termination. District may, by written notice to 
Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without 
cause by giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the 
effective date thereof, at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such 
termination.  Upon termination, Consultant shall be compensated only for those services 
which have been adequately rendered to District, and Consultant shall be entitled to no 
further compensation.  Consultant may not terminate this Agreement except for cause. 

3.4.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, District may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents 
and Data and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with 



 

 
Page 12 of 19 

2023.08.04 

the performance of Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to 
provide such document and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.4.3 Additional Services. In the event this Agreement is terminated in 
whole or in part as provided herein, District may procure, upon such terms and in such 
manner as it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property. This 
Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for District to copy, use, modify, 
reuse, or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property 
embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or 
works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited 
to, physical drawings or data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, 
which are prepared or caused to be prepared by Consultant under this Agreement 
(“Documents & Data”).  All Documents & Data shall be and remain the property of District 
and shall not be used in whole or in substantial part by Consultant on other projects 
without the District's express written permission.  Within thirty (30) days following the 
completion, suspension, abandonment or termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
provide to District reproducible copies of all Documents & Data, in a form and amount 
required by District.  District reserves the right to select the method of document 
reproduction and to establish where the reproduction will be accomplished.  The 
reproduction expense shall be borne by District at the actual cost of duplication.  In the 
event of a dispute regarding the amount of compensation to which the Consultant is 
entitled under the termination provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall provide all 
Documents & Data to District upon payment of the undisputed amount.  Consultant shall 
have no right to retain or fail to provide to District any such documents pending resolution 
of the dispute.  In addition, Consultant shall retain copies of all Documents & Data on file 
for a minimum of five (5) years following completion of the Project and shall make copies 
available to District upon the payment of actual reasonable duplication costs. Before 
destroying the Documents & Data following this retention period, Consultant shall make 
a reasonable effort to notify District and provide District with the opportunity to obtain 
the documents. 

3.5.2 Subconsultants. Consultant shall require all subconsultants to agree 
in writing that District is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for any Documents 
& Data the subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.  Consultant represents and 
warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & Data.  
Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data 
which were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or its subconsultants, 
or those provided to Consultant by the District. 



 

 
Page 13 of 19 

2023.08.04 

3.5.3 Right to Use. District shall not be limited in any way in its use or reuse 
of the Documents and Data or any part of them at any time for purposes of this Project 
or another project, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this 
Agreement or on a project other than this Project without employing the services of 
Consultant shall be at District’s sole risk. If District uses or reuses the Documents & Data 
on any project other than this Project, it shall remove the Consultant’s seal from the 
Documents & Data and indemnify and hold harmless Consultant and its officers, directors, 
agents, and employees from claims arising out of the negligent use or re-use of the 
Documents & Data on such other project.  Consultant shall be responsible and liable for 
its Documents & Data, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, only with respect to the 
condition of the Documents & Data at the time they are provided to the District upon 
completion, suspension, abandonment or termination.  Consultant shall not be 
responsible or liable for any revisions to the Documents & Data made by any party other 
than Consultant, a party for whom the Consultant is legally responsible or liable, or 
anyone approved by the Consultant. 

3.5.4 Indemnification. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the 
District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and 
harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, for any alleged 
infringement of any patent, copyright, trade secret, trade name, trademark, or any other 
proprietary right of any person or entity in consequence of the use on the Project by 
District the Documents & Data, including any method, process, product, or concept 
specified or depicted. 

3.5.5 Confidentiality. All Documents & Data, either created by or provided 
to Consultant in connection with the performance of this Agreement, shall be held 
confidential by Consultant.  All Documents & Data shall not, without the prior written 
consent of District, be used or reproduced by Consultant for any purposes other than the 
performance of the Services.  Consultant shall not disclose, cause or facilitate the 
disclosure of the Documents & Data to any person or entity not connected with the 
performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing furnished to Consultant that is 
otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has become known, to the 
related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use District’s name or 
insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or the 
Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other 
similar medium without the prior written consent of District. 

3.6 General Provisions. 

3.6.1 Delivery of Notices. All notices permitted or required under this 
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such 
other address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 



 

 
Page 14 of 19 

2023.08.04 

District: Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
4594 San Bernardino Street 
Montclair, CA 91763 
Attn:  Elizabeth Willis, General Manager 
Email: ewillis@cbwcd.org 

Copy to: Administration* 
Attn:  Alicia Fernandez, Administrative Services Manager 
Email: afernandez@cbwcd.org 
 
Facilities & Operations Department 
Attn:  Dave Schroeder, Facilities & Operations Department Manager 
Email: dschroeder@cbwcd.org 

*Certificate of Liability Insurance to be emailed to Administrative Department 
  
Consultant 19Six Architects 

250 East Rincon Street, Suite 204 
Corona, CA 92879 
Attn: Joe Monfreda, Senior Project Manager  
Email: jmonfreda@19six.com 
Phone: 951-847-4174 

 
Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, 

forty-eight (48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and 
addressed to the party at its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate 
notice on the date actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.6.2 Indemnification. 

3.6.2.1 Scope of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, 
causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or 
equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, 
pertaining to, or incident to any alleged acts, errors or omissions of Consultant, its 
officials, officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants or agents in connection with 
the performance of the Consultant’s Services, the Project or this Agreement, including 
without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees and 
attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, to 
the extent Consultant's Services are subject to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above 
indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims 
that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct 
of the Consultant. 



 

 
Page 15 of 19 

2023.08.04 

3.6.2.2 Additional Indemnity Obligations. Consultant shall defend, 
with Counsel of District's choosing and at Consultant’s own cost, expense and risk, any 
and all claims, suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered by Section 3.6.2.1 
that may be brought or instituted against District or its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, volunteers and agents.  Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award 
or decree that may be rendered against District or its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such claim, suit, action or other 
proceeding.  Consultant shall also reimburse District for the cost of any settlement paid 
by District or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers as part of 
any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Such reimbursement shall include 
payment for District’s attorney’s fees and costs, including expert witness fees.  Consultant 
shall reimburse District and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or 
volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in 
connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Consultant’s 
obligation to indemnify shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement, and 
shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the District, its directors, 
officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.6.3 Governing Law; Government Code Claim Compliance. This 
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Venue shall be in San 
Bernardino County.  In addition to any and all contract requirements pertaining to notices 
of and requests for compensation or payment for extra work, disputed work, claims 
and/or changed conditions, Consultant must comply with the claim procedures set forth 
in Government Code sections 900 et seq. prior to filing any lawsuit against the District.  
Such Government Code claims and any subsequent lawsuit based upon the Government 
Code claims shall be limited to those matters that remain unresolved after all procedures 
pertaining to extra work, disputed work, claims, and/or changed conditions have been 
followed by Consultant.  If no such Government Code claim is submitted, or if any 
prerequisite contractual requirements are not otherwise satisfied as specified herein, 
Consultant shall be barred from bringing and maintaining a valid lawsuit against the 
District. 

3.6.4 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for each and every provision 
of this Agreement. 

3.6.5 District’s Right to Employ Other Consultants. District reserves right 
to employ other consultants in connection with this Project.  

3.6.6 .Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.6.7 Assignment or Transfer. Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or 
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein 
without the prior written consent of the District.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and 



 

 
Page 16 of 19 

2023.08.04 

void, and any assignees, hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by 
reason of such attempted assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.6.8 Construction; References; Captions. Since the Parties or their agents 
have participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this 
Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or 
against any Party.  Any term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be 
deemed calendar days and not workdays.  All references to Consultant include all 
personnel, employees, agents, and subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  All references to District include its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  The 
captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference 
only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this 
Agreement. 

3.6.9 Amendment; Modification. No supplement, modification or 
amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties. 

3.6.10 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any 
other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other 
Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.6.11 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except to the extent expressly provided 
for in Section 3.6.7, there are no intended third-party beneficiaries of any right or 
obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.6.12 Invalidity; Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.6.13 Prohibited Interests. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has 
not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant 
warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than 
a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this Agreement.  Consultant further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees 
or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic Interest with the District’s Filing Officer 
as required under state law in the performance of the Services.  For breach or violation 
of this warranty, District shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  
For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of District, during the 



 

 
Page 17 of 19 

2023.08.04 

term of his or her service with District, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.6.14 Cooperation; Further Acts. The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.6.15 Attorney’s Fees. If either party commences an action against the 
other party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with 
this Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover 
from the losing party reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.6.16 Authority to Enter Agreement. Consultant has all requisite power 
and authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  
Each Party warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal 
power, right, and authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.6.17 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute an original. 

3.6.18 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of 
the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a 
writing signed by both parties. 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 

 



 

 
Page 18 of 19 

2023.08.04 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE DISTRICT 
AND 19SIX ARCHITECTS 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, through their respective authorized 
representatives, have entered into this Agreement as of the of the Effective Date written 
above.  

“DISTRICT” 
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

By:   Attest: 

 Mark Ligtenberg   Elizabeth Willis  

 President, Board of Directors   Board Secretary  

 

“CONSULTANT” 
19SIX ARCHITECTS 

By:   By:  

 (Signature)   (Signature) 

 Name (Print)   Name (Print) 

 Title (Print)   Title (Print) 

     

EXHIBITS: 

• Exhibit A – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
• Exhibit B – COMPENSATION 

 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The District is inviting qualified firms to submit proposals to provide DESIGN AND ENGINEERING 
SERVICES FOR AN AMPHITHEATER ROOF, ENHANCEMENT, AND RECLADDING, which includes, 
but is not limited to the following tasks: 
 

Design and engineering services for the construction of a new roof over the Waterwise 
Community Center Amphitheater, along with the construction of a bench along the top row 
of seating to allow for an additional row of seating and recladding the surface of the 
amphitheater. The new roof over the amphitheater should cover the stage area and the 
entire audience area and protect occupants from rain, as well as provide shade on sunny 
days. The overall design aesthetic of the roof, top row of seating, and surface recladding 
should harmonize with the design aesthetic of the existing buildings on campus, including 
the main building, the education building, and the multi-use building.  

 
The amphitheater currently has three rows of seating built into an artificial hillside and is clad 
in pavers, stone, and stucco. Two stairways allow for audience members to climb up to a 
second and third row of seating. The first row of seating, along with a designated handicap 
seating area, is accessible from the stage. The amphitheater is approximately fifty-six (56) 
feet wide at its widest point, which is measured from either end of the top row (or third row) 
of seating. The depth of the amphitheater measures approximately thirty-three (33) feet 
from the back of center stage to the back of the third row of seating. The stage measures 
approximately 24’3” in depth and 22’ wide. The first and second row of seating are 
approximately 3 feet deep and the third and top row of seating is 5 feet deep. The existing 
shade structure is approximately 22 feet wide and 25 feet long. It is a steel structure that 
holds movable cloth shades and is not weather proof.  

 
The addition of lighting and/or sound equipment will be considered as part of the final 
project. 

 
The District is open to suggestions for the materials and overall structure of the roof, 
however, steel or light gauge steel have been suggested as suitable possibilities. The roof 
should meet or exceed all safety standards for a structure of its nature. 
 

 Tasks 
o Prepare three (3) conceptual level color renderings that illustrate the amphitheater 

enhancements as described above. Must be prepared in close community with the Chino 
Basin Water Conservation District 

o Prepare Cost Estimates based on concepts developed.  
o Based on approved design, prepare final construction drawings, specifications, and assist 

District Staff in moving to the bid phase of the project. Include cost estimate for the entire 
project. 

o Provide construction administration services including, but not limited to permitting 
process, Request for Information (RFI’s), change orders, project meetings, final sign-off on 
the project, etc.  



 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
COMPENSATION 

 
Compensation for the Services shall not exceed ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR 

THOUSAND AND NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($124,900.00) (“Not to Exceed Amount”). 
 

 



ATTACHMENT 2






















































































































	01.0 - Mtg Min. Cover - 2024.04.8
	02.0 - AB 1234 Tvl & Training - SR - 2024.04.8
	03.0 - AB 1234 Comp & Reim. - SR - 2024.04.8
	04.0 - Fin. Rpt Cover - 2024.04.8
	05.0 - SR - Encampment Ordinance
	06.0 - Policy 48 Cell Phone - SR - 2024.03.27
	07.0 - Policy Manual Updates - SR - 2024.03.27
	08.0 - Admin II Retro Pay - SR - 2024.03.27
	09.0 - SR - Election Marketing Plan
	10.0 - SR - Award PSA to 19Six



